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PETRON CORFPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PEXAOM JUNE 30. 2011 and DECEMBER 31, 2010

{Amounts in Million Pesos)

June 30, 2011

December 31, 2010

Note Unaudited Audited
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,13 P 23,552 P 43,984
Financial assets at fair value through proefit or loss J1,12 195 azr
Available-for-sale financial assets 11,12 145 178
Trade and other receivables - net 11,12 23,029 14,266
Inventories 41,707 28,145
Other current assets 6,699 4,166
94,327 101,086
Assets held for sale 5 776 823
Total Current Assets 95,103 101,909
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment - net P 39,684 34,957
Investment in associates g 1,392 Bo4
Investment properties 118 119
Available-for-sale financial assets i1i2 1,041 9E3
Deferred tax assets 2 129 28
Other noncurrent assets 11,12 23,919 23,016
Total Noncurrent Assets 66,283 59,907
P 161,386 P 161,816
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term loans 11,12 P 14,155 P 332,457
Liabilities for crude oil and petraleum
product importation 11,12 16,939 11,194
Trade and other payables 11,12 6,688 6,744
Derivative liabilities 11,13 6 30
Current portion of long-term debt - net 11,12 11,007 11,517
Income tax payable 586 14
Total Current Liabilities 59,381 61,956
Noncurrent Liabilitles
Long-term debt - net of current portion 18,432 40,606 42,885
Retirement benefits liability 249 249
Deferred tax liabilities 1,641 1,958
Assel retirement obligation 861 815
Other noncurrent liabilities 2 668 609
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 44,025 46,016
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 9,475 8,475
Additional paid-in capital 9,764 9,764
Retained earnings 38,364 33.748
Other reserves 88 83
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 57,691 53.070
Non-controlling interest 289 174
Total Equity 57.980 53.344
F 161.386 P 161,816

M nie: See arcomypanying Manzgemant 11 mand Analysia and Salecied Nates to Consoliiraed Finaneli! Searemmenis.

Certified by: f
. GABRILLO
esident - Controllers



PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 and 2010

PETRON (Amounts in Million Pesos, Except Per Share Amounts)
(UNAUDTED)
April to June January to June
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010

SALES 2 70,847 59,471 P 134897 P 115354
COST OF GOODS SQLD 65,508 54,485 121,037 105,857
GROSS PROFIT 5,339 5,006 13,860 3,487
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (1,547) (1,503} (3.072) (2.829)
INTEREST INCOME 324 10 699 162
INTEREST EXPENSE (1.304) (928) (2,623) (1.871)
SHARE IN NET LOSS OF AN ASSQCIATE (51) 5 (103)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - net 702 (1,445) (710) {1,082)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,463 1,234 8,051 3857
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 852 205 2,006 da7
NET INCOME P 2611 P 1029 P 6,045 P 2960
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent eompany F 1,605 1,021 P 6,030 P 2042

Non-controlling interest 6 a 15 18

P 2611 P 1,029

P 6,045 P 2960

BASIC DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY = 0.25 0.08

P 0.59 P 029

HNaote: See accompanying Management DISensslon and Analysls and Selected Notes to Consolidiaed Financial Statements,

Certified hy:

P.ss#




PETRON CORPORATION ANDSUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

PETRON {Amounts in Million Pesos)
(UNAUDITED)
Aprilto June January to june
2011 2010 2011 2010

NET INCOME P 2,611 P 1,018 P 6,045 P 2960
NET GAIN (LOSS) ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

FINANCIAL ASSETS - NET OF TAX 88 - (1)
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON TRANSLATION

OF FOEEIGN OPERATIONS (11) & 6 16
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - NET OF TAX 717 5] 5 16
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 2,688 P 1,034 P 6050 P 2,976
Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company P 2,682 P 1,026 P 6035 P 2,958

Non-controlling Interest 6 8 15 18

P 2,688 P 1,034 P 6,050 P 2,978

Note: See accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis and Selected Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certified by:
EFRENY GABRILLO
Assistant Vice Fresident-Controllers



Balance at January 1, 2011 {Audited)
Total comprehensive income
Appropriation for capital projects
Cash dividends (Votes)

Issuance of shares

Balance at june 30, 2011 (Unaudited)

Balance at January 1, 2010 (Audited)
Total comprehensive income
Appropriztion for capital projects
Cash dividends (ores)

Issuance of shares

Balance at fune 30, 2010 (Unaudited)

PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FORTHE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

Equity Attributable 1o Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Retained Earnings

Additfianal HMaon-
Freferred Common paid-in Appro- Unappre- Other controlling Total
Stock Stock capital priated priated Reserves Total Interest Eqaity

P 100 P 9375 P 9764 P 15554 P 18194 P 83 P 53070 P 274 P 53344

6,030 5 6,015 15 6,050
9,618 (9,618) - i
(1.412) (L414) (1.419)

F o0 P 9377 P 9764 F 25072 F 13192 P 8 F creg1 P 289 P 57.9%0

P 9375 P 15492 P 12512 (P 98) P 37291 P 44 P 37535
2,942 16 2,958 18 2,976

(238) (238) (238)

100 9,765 g,Bs5 9,860

el

P00 P 9378 P o765 P 15492 P 15236 [ F 82) 49876 P 22 P 50038

Note: See accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis and Selected Notes to Consolidtaed Financial Statements.

Certified by:
EFRE GAI!RILLD
Assis Vic

esident-Controllers



PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 and 2010

ERTON (Amounts in Million Pesos)}
(UNAUDITED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2011 2010
Income before income tax P 8,051 P 3.857
Adjustments for:

Share in net loss of an associate 103
Depreciation and amortization 1,749 1,652
Interest expense 2,623 1,871
Interest income (629) (162)
Netunrealized foreign exchange gain (63) {17z}
Others (40} (16}
Operating income before working capital changes 11,724 7,030
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Recelvables (1.029) (4,171}
Inventories (13.562) {2,385}
Other current assets (2.405) (590)
Increase {(decrease) in liabilities:
Liabilities for crude oil and petroleum
product importation 5.778 13,577
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 175 224
Provisions for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence and others 36 [101)
Interest paid {2.771) (1,838)
Income taxes paid (267} (53]
Interest received 730 155

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities (1,591) 4.450

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:

Property, plant and equipment (6.428) (2.612)
Decrease |:'II'I.E1'EE.SE] i

Other recelvables 649 533

Other noncurrent assets (337) 258
Reductions from {additions to):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 30 o

Available-for-sale investments (a5} (2)

Investments [1.266) (743)

Net cash flows provided by {used in) investing activities (7,375) (2,873)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Avallment of loans 29,450 96,855
FPayments of:

Laoans {40,612) (93,212)
Cash dividends (1,394) (239)
Issuance of Preferred Stock - 9,865
Others 73 40
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities (12,443) 13,309
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (23) 153
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (21,432) 15.339
CASH AND CASH EQUIVATLENTS ATREGINNING OF YEAR 43,984 12,985
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF PERIOD P 212,552 P 28,32

Note: See accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis and Selected Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

\

. GABRILLO
President - Controllers

Certified by: |
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PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reprting Policies

Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries (collectivetferred to as the “Group”) prepared its
consolidated interim financial statements as of &wdthe period ended June 30, 2011 and
comparative financial statements for the same gen®010 following the new presentation rules
under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) No. 34nterim Financial Reporting. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group Hmeen prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The consolidated financial statements are presentBtiilippine peso and all values are rounded
to the nearest million (R000,000), except whertise indicated.

The principal accounting policies and methods aelbph preparing the interim consolidated
financial statements of the Group are the sambasetfollowed in the most recent annual audited
financial statements.

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments to Standandsinterpretations
The Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSQrayed the adoption of new or revised
standards, amendments to standards, and interpnstais part of PFRS.

Amendments to Standard and Interpretations Adoipt@@11
Starting January 1, 2011, the Group adopted thwolg amended PAS and Philippine
Interpretations from International Financial Repagtinterpretation Committee (IFRIC):

= Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Aments to Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC 14: PAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefis&t, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction).These amendments remove unintended consequersieg étom the
treatment of prepayments where there is a minimumdihg requirement and result in
prepayments of contributions in certain circumségnoeing recognized as an asset rather than
an expense. The amendments are effective for apeu@ld beginning on or after January 1,
2011.

» Revised PAS 24Related Party Disclosures (2009mends the definition of a related party
and modifies certain related party disclosure nesments for government-related entities.
The revised standard is effective for annual perioelginning on or after January 1, 2011.

= Improvements to PFR&910contain 11 amendments to 6 standards and 1 ietatjun, of
which only the following are applicable to the Goup

o PAS 1,Presentation of Financial Statementhe amendments clarify that disaggregation
of changes in each component of equity arising ftoamsactions recognized in other

-10 -



comprehensive income also is required to be predegither in the statement of changes
in equity or in the notes. The amendments are &@fefor annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2011.

o PAS 27,Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenkte amendments clarify that
the consequential amendments to PAS T2l Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates,PAS 28,Investment in Associateand PAS 3linterest in Joint Venturesesulting
from PAS 27 (2008) should be applied prospectivelyh the exception of amendments
resulting from renumbering. The amendments arec@ffe for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2010. Early application is piteal.

o0 PAS 34,Interim Financial ReportingThe amendments add examples to the list of events
or transactions that require disclosure under PA&r& remove references to materiality
in PAS 34 that describes other minimum disclosufé® amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1128arly application is permitted and is
required to be disclosed.

o PFRS 1,First-time Adoption of PFRSSThe amendments: (i) clarify that PAS 8 is not
applicable to changes in accounting policies oaegrduring the period covered by an
entity’s first PFRS financial statements; (ii) mdiuce guidance for entities that publish
interim financial information under PAS 3#hterim Financial Reportingaind change either
their accounting policies or use of the PFRS 1 etams during the period covered by
their first PFRS financial statements; (iii) exteihg scope of paragraph D8 of PFRS 1 so
that an entity is permitted to use an event-dri@@nvalue measurement as deemed cost for
some or all of its assets when such revaluatioruroed during the reporting periods
covered by its first PFRS financial statements; éaylintroduce an additional optional
deemed cost exemption for entities to use the ayrgmounts under previous GAAP as
deemed cost at the date of transition to PFRS&donrs of property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets used in certain rate-regulattdities. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after Janua301L1. Early application is permitted and
Is required to be disclosed.

0 PFRS 3Business Combination§he amendments: (i) clarify that contingent cdagation
arising in a business combination previously actedirfor in accordance with PFRS 3
(2004) that remains outstanding at the adoptioe d&tPFRS 3 (2008) continues to be
accounted for in accordance with PFRS 3 (2004){init the accounting policy choice to
measure non-controlling interests upon initial gr@gbon at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of thequiree’s identifiable net assets to
instruments that give rise to a present ownershiprést and that currently entitle the
holder to a share of net assets in the eventmfidation; (iii) expand the current guidance
on the attribution of the market-based measure rofaequirer’'s share-based payment
awards issued in exchange for acquiree awards bate@nsideration transferred and post-
combination compensation cost when an acquirerblgged to replace the acquiree’s
existing awards to encompass voluntarily replaceéxpired acquiree awards. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beggoin or after July 1, 2010. Early
application is permitted and is required to be ldsed.

-11 -



o PFRS 7,Financial Instruments: Disclosure§he amendments add an explicit statement
that qualitative disclosure should be made in thatext of the quantitative disclosures to
better enable users to evaluate the entity’'s exposo risks arising from financial
instruments. In addition, the IASB amended and needaexisting disclosure requirements.
The amendments are effective for annual periodsnhagy on or after January 1, 2011.
Early application permitted and required to be ldsed.

o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13Customer Loyalty Programme§he amendments
clarify that the fair value of award credits take® account the amount of discounts or
incentives that otherwise would be offered to corstrs that have not earned the award
credits. The amendments are effective for annuabge beginning on or after January 1,
2011. Early application is permitted and requirethe¢ disclosed.

= Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instuments addresses issues in respect of the accountirtgeobgebtor in a debt for equity
swap transaction. It clarifies that equity instrumseissued to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the financial liability in a debt for equiswap are consideration paid in accordance
with PAS 39 paragraph 41. The interpretation isliapple for annual period beginning on or
after July 1, 2010.

The adoption of these foregoing new or revised dgeds, amendments to standards and
Philippine Interpretations of IFRIC did not havematerial effect on the interim consolidated
financial statements.

New or Revised Standards not yet Adopted

» PFRS 9, Financial Instruments(2009) was issued as the first phase of the PAS 39
replacement project. The chapters of the standatdased in 2009 only related to
classification and measurement of financial as$&ERS 9 (2009) retains but simplifies the
mixed measurement model and establishes two primagsurement categories for financial
assets: amortized cost and fair value. The basislasfsification depends on the entity’s
business model and contractual cash flow charatteriof the financial asset.

» PFRS 9,Financial Instrumentg2010). A new version of PFRS 9 issued in Octab@t0
which now includes all the requirements of PFRS2000) without amendment. The new
version of PFRS 9 also incorporates requirementt waspect to the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and the deggttion of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The guidance in PAS 39 on impairmentfinancial assets and hedge accounting
continues to apply. The new standard is effectameannual periods beginning on or after
January 13, 2013. Earlier application is permitlBRS 9 (2010) supersedes PFRS 9 (2009).
However, for annual periods beginning before Jandark013, an entity may elect to apply
PFRS 9 (2009) rather than PFRS 9 (2010).

The Group is still assessing the impact of the adof PFRS 9 (2009) or PFRS 9 (2010) on the
consolidated financial statements and therefor,iriterim consolidated financial statements do
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not reflect the impact of the new standard. Theuris evaluating whether it will opt for the
early adoption of PFRS 9 (2009) or PFRS 9 (201@siconsolidated financial statements which
will result in a change in the classification andasurement of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities.

. Segment Information

Management identifies segments based on businesgengraphic locations. These operating
segments are monitored and strategic decisionsmade on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results. The CEO (the chief operatingsi@t maker) reviews management reports on a
regular basis.

The Group’s major sources of revenues are as fellow

a. Sales of petroleum and other related products whiclude gasoline, diesel and kerosene
offered to motorists and public transport operathrsugh its service station network around
the country.

b. Insurance premiums from the business and operabiorall kinds of insurance and
reinsurance, on sea as well as on land, of pr@segoods and merchandise, of transportation
or conveyance, against fire, earthquake, marinégspaccidents and all others forms and lines
of insurance authorized by law, except life insgan

c. Lease of acquired real estate properties for pmim| refining, storage and distribution
facilities, gasoline service stations and otheatesl structures.

d. Sales on wholesale or retail and operation of senatations, retail outlets, restaurants,
convenience stores and the like.

e. Export sales of various petroleum and non-fuel potsl to other Asian countries such as
South Korea, Taiwan, China, Thailand, Indonesiag&bore, Cambodia, Japan, India, UAE,
Pakistan and Malaysia.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets usadgé&ygment and consist principally of operating
cash, receivables, inventories, and property, pkami equipment, net of allowances and
impairment. Segment liabilities include all opengtiiabilities and consist principally of accounts
payable, wages, taxes currently payable and acdialgitities. Segment assets and liabilities do
not include deferred taxes.

Inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance insllde and purchases between operating
segments. Transfer prices between operating segnagatset on an arm’s length basis in a
manner similar to transactions with third parti®gch transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

-13 -



The following tables present revenue and incomermétion and certain asset and liability
information regarding the business segments asra 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and for
the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. Se¢@ssets and liabilities exclude deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities:

Petroleum Insurance Leasing Marketing Elimination Total
Period Ended June 30,
2011
Revenue
External Sales P134,017 P - P - P880 P - P134,897
Inter-segment Sales 107,424 59 174 - (107,657) -
Segment results 10,461 43 77 44 163 10,788
Net income 6,104 79 25 52 (215) 6,045
As of June 30, 2011
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 172,591 1,918 3,386 793 (17,431) 161,257
Segment liabilities 114,898 327 2,453 147 (16,061) 101,764
Other segment
information
Property, plant and
equipment 36,231 - - 226 3,227 39,684
Depreciation and
amortization 1,730 - - 19 - 1,749
Period Ended June 30,
2010
Revenue
External Sales P113,090 P - P - P2,264 P - P115,354
Inter-segment Sales 1,544 69 163 - (1,776) -
Segment results 6,374 56 78 85 55 6,648
Net income 2,750 91 29 84 6 2,960
As of Dec. 31, 2010
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 163,823 2,086 2,935 1,097 (8,153) 1,78%
Segment liabilities 108,665 559 2,027 303 (5,040) 06,314
Other segment
information
Property, plant and
equipment 31,753 - 1 379 2,824 34,957
Depreciation and
amortization 3,419 - - 65 (1) 3,483
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The following tables present additional informatmmthe petroleum business segment as of
June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and for thmaiths ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Retail Lube Gasul Industrial Others Total

Property, plant and

equipment
As of June 30, 2011 P4,874 P308 P194 P70 P30,777 P36,223
As of December 31, 2010 4,524 345 181 43 26,660 7531,
Capital Expenditures
As of June 30, 2011 P406 P - P29 P9 P8,220 P8,664
As of December 31, 2010 169 1 8 2 2,615 2,795
Revenue
Period ended June 30, 2011 P53,114 P1,191 P9,685 P51,235 P19,317 P134,542
Period ended June 30, 2010 45,789 1,054 7,325 48,23 12,227 114,634

Geographical Segments

The following table presents revenue informatiogareing the geographical segments of the
Group for the six months ended June 30, 2011 ad@.20

Petroleum Insurance Leasing Marketing Elimination Total
Period ended June 30,
2011
Revenue
Local P118,845 P38 P174 P880 (P1,209) P118,728
Export/International 122,596 21 - - (106,448) 16,169
Period ended June 30,
2010
Revenue
Local P105,313 P40 P163 P2,264 (P1,775) P106,005
Export/International 9,321 28 - - - 9,349

-15 -



3. Related Party Transactions

Lease Agreement

On September 30, 2009, New Ventures Realty Corpor&ntered into a 25-year lease with the
Philippine National Oil Company without rent-freerd, covering a property which shall be
used for refinery, commencing January 1, 2010 artting on December 31, 2039. The annual
rental shall be P93 payable on thd' tay of January each year without the necessitieofand.
This non-cancellable lease is subject to renewabig and annual escalation clauses of 3% per
annum up to 2011. The leased premises shall benaapd starting 2012 and every fifth year
thereafter in which the new rental rate shall beemheined equivalent to 5% of the reappraised
value, and still subject to annual escalation dao$ 3% for the four years following the
appraisal. Prior to this agreement, Petron has wstanding lease agreement on the same
property from PNOC. Also, as of June 30, 2011, dPeteases other parcels of land from PNOC
for its bulk plants and service stations.

Transactions with Current Owners/Related Parties

a. Sales relate to the Parent Company’s supply agnetsmagth various San Miguel Corporation
subsidiaries. Under these agreements, the Paremp&ty supplies the bunker, diesel fuel and
lube requirements of selected San Miguel Corpangi8MC) plants and subsidiaries.

b. Purchases relate to purchase of goods and sergigels as construction, information
technology and shipping.

c. Petron entered into lease agreement with San MiBuaberties, Inc. (SMPI) for its office
space covering 6,759 square meters with a monditdyaf P3.9. The lease, which commenced
on June 1, 2011, is for a period of one year angbmaenewed for a period in accordance
with the written agreement of the parties.

d. The Parent Company also pays SMC for its shareinnton expenses such as utilities and
management fees.

e. The Parent Company has advances to Petron Compor&mployee Retirement Plan
(PCERP) amounting to P21,812 and P22,435 as of 30n2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively, included as part of “Other noncuri@sgets” account.

f. As of June 30, 2011, the Parent Company has nardumeceivables of P701 from
Petrochemical Asia (HK) Limited included as partofl “Other noncurrent assets” account.

-16 -



The balances and transactions with related paasesf June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010

follow:
Revenue Purchases Amounts Amounts
from from owed by owed to
June 30, 2011 Relationship with Related Related Related Related
Related Parties Related parties Parties Parties Ptes Parties
SMC Ultimate Parent P0.45 P44 P.08 P13
PanAsia Energy Under common 577 - 503 -
Holdings, Inc. control
Distileria Bago, Inc. Under common 242 - 33 -
control
San Miguel Brewery Inc. Under common 452 0.09 99 0.12
control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 386 - 107 -
Packaging Corporation control
SMC Shipping and Under common 197 350 41 43
Lighterage Corporation control
Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. Under common 73 0.30 14 0.17
control
San Miguel Foads, Inc. Under common 152 0.02 46 0.02
control
San Miguel Energy Under common 51 318 0.03 43
Corporation control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 372 - 150 -
Asia Corporation control
Challenger Aero Air Under common 11 - 9 -
Corporation control
Mindanao Corrugated Under common 19 - 4 -
Fibreboard, Inc. control
San Miguel Purefoods Under common 77 0.04 34 -
Company, Inc. control
Archen Technologies, Inc. Under common 12 202 1 111
control
SMPI Under common - 28 29 -
control
Others Under common 16 26 18 22
control
P2,637.45 P968.45 P1,088.11 pP232.31
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Revenue Purchases Amounts  Amounts
from from owed by owed to
December 31, 2010 Relationship with Related Related Related Related
Related Parties Related parties Parties Parties tiePar Parties
SMC Ultimate Parent P1 P29 P2 P33
PanAsia Energy Under common 8,045 - 1,428 -
Holdings, Inc. control
Distileria Bago, Inc. Under common 720 - - -
control
San Miguel Brewery, Inc. Under common 573 0.60 100 -
control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 350 - - -
Packaging Corporation control
SMC Shipping and Under common 304 407 46 13
Lighterage Corporation control
Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. Under common 169 0.30 58 -
control
San Miguel Foads, Inc. Under common 150 3 36 -
control
San Miguel Energy Under common 83 - - -
Corporation control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 40 - 40 -
Asia Corporation control
Challenger Aero Air Under common 22 2 9 -
Corporation control
Mindanao Corrugated Under common 17 - 4 -
Fibreboard, Inc. control
San Miguel Purefoods Under common 14 4 - 7
Company, Inc. control
Archen Technologies, Inc. Under common 12 227 2 26
control
SMPI Under common - 63 - 5
control
San Miguel Paper Under common - - 49 -
Packaging Corporation control
Others Under common 12 39 5 6
control
P10,512 P774.90 P1,779 P90




4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of:

Additions and Disposals
January 1, 2011 Transfers and Reclass  June 30, 2011
Cost:
Buildings P8,055 P245 (P7) P8,293
Machinery & Equipment 5,816 (204) - 5,612
Refinery and Plant

Equipment 37,292 35 - 37,327
Service Stations and Other

Equipment 5,353 136 (16) 5,473
Transportation Equipment 519 27 2) 544
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures 1,626 148 (10) 1,764
Land Improvements 4,332 2 - 4,334
Leasehold Improvements 194 6 4 204
Capital Projects in Progress 2,796 6,112 - 8,908

65,983 6,507 (32) 72,459
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (3,714) (205) - (3,919)
Machinery & Equipment (3,907) (133) - (4,040)
Refinery and Plant

Equipment (16,552) (1,018) - (17,570)
Service Stations and Other

Equipment (3,756) (223) (26) (4,005)
Transportation Equipment (355) (25) 2 (378)
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures (1,373) (63) 10 (1,426)
Land Improvements (1,271) (19) - (1,290)
Leasehold Improvements (98) (49) - 147)
Capital Projects in Progress - - - -

(31,026) (1,735) (14) (32,775)
Net Book Value P34,957 P4,772 (P45) P39,684
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Additions and Disposals
January 1, 2010 Transfers and Reclass  June 30, 2010
Cost:
Buildings P9,545 P83 (P1,658) P7,970
Machinery & Equipment 5,191 52 (2) 5,241
Refinery and Plant

Equipment 36,802 273 - 37,075
Service Stations and Other

Equipment 4,070 424 1 4,495
Transportation Equipment 504 39 (42) 502
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures 1,522 32 (28) 1,526
Land Improvements 4,962 16 - 4,978
Leasehold Improvements 82 6 3 91
Capital Projects in Progress 1,450 1,700 - 3,150

64,128 2,625 (1,725) 65,028
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (4,214) (240) 893 (3,561)
Machinery & Equipment (3,593) (121) - (3,714)
Refinery and Plant

Equipment (14,439) (1,074) 3 (15,510)
Service Stations and Other

Equipment (3,383) (146) 1 (3,528)
Transportation Equipment (364) (23) 36 (351)
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures (1,295) (58) 27 (1,326)
Land Improvements (1,231) (20) - (1,251)
Leasehold Improvements (32) 4) - (36)
Capital Projects in Progress - - - -

(28,551) (1,686) 960 (29,277)
Net Book Value P35,577 P939 (P765) P35,751

Capital Commitments
As of June 30, 2011, and December 31, 2010 theGEhas outstanding commitments to acquire
property, plant and equipment amounting to P4,0@PRil,142, respectively.

. Assets Held for Sale

Petron has an investment property consisting ofeffinits located at Petron Mega Plaza which
has a floor area of 21,216 square meters covene@8th - 44th floors and 206 parking lots. On
December 1, 2010, Petron’s Board of Directors ayguiahe sale of these properties to provide
cash flows for various projects. On May 2, 20tk Parent company sold the"$foor (with
total floor area of 1,530 square meters) and 1Ripgiots to International Committee of the Red
Cross with a total book value of P57. As of JuneZl1 and December 31, 2010, the carrying
amount of the investment property amounted to R82BP776, respectively, and is presented as
“Assets held for sale” in the consolidated stateneéfinancial position.
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6. Fuel Supply Contract

The Parent Comparsntered into various fuel supply contracts with Naél Power Corporation

(NPC). Under the agreements, the Parent Compapplisa the bunker and diesel fuel oll
requirements of NPC, its Independent Power Produ@®P) and Small Power Utility Groups
(SPUG) power plants/barges. For six months endee B0, 2011, the following are the fuel
supply contracts granted to Petron:

Date of Contract IFO** IFO DFO** DFO
Bid Date Award Duration (in KL**) (Amount) | (inKL) | (Amount)
Jan 12, ‘11 Jan 31, ‘11 Jan to Dec ‘11 44,5987 P12 15,192 P490
Mar 10, ‘11| Mar 23, ‘11 Apr to Jun ‘11 4,833 140 580 373

**|FO = Industrial Fuel Oil
DFO = Diesel Fuel Oil
KL = Kilo Liters

7. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts ®sith months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

2011 2010
Net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company P6,030 P2,942
Dividends on preferred shares for the period 476 238
Net income attributable to common shareholders
of Parent Company P5,554 P2,704
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (in millions) 9,375 9,375
Basic/diluted earnings per common share P0.59 P0.29

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Group has ntivdldebt or equity instruments.

8. Dividends

On May 11, 2011, the Parent Company’s Board of ddine(BOD) declared cash dividend of
P2.382/share to all preferred stockholders, antid?€hare to all common stockholders, of record
as of May 26, 2011 payable on June 6, 2011.

On June 7, 2010, the Parent Company’'s BOD decleastt dividend of P2.382/share to all

preferred stockholders, and P0.10/share to all comstockholders, of record as of July 30, 2010
payable on August 16, 2010.
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9. Acquisition of an Associate

On January 3, 2011, Petron entered into a Shaee &w Purchase Agreement with Harbour
Centre Port Terminal, Inc. (HCPT]I) for the purchas®5% of the outstanding and issued capital
stock of Manila North Harbour Port Inc. (MNHPI).

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Unused Letters of Credit and Outstanding Standlitet®of Credit

Petron has unused letters of credit amounting ppaqimately P31 as of June 30, 2011 and P4 as
of December 31, 2010. On the other hand, outstgndiandby letters of credit for crude
importations amounted to P11,088 and P8,756 auué¢ B0, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively.

Tax Credit Certificates Related Cases

In 1998, the Philippine Bureau of Internal Reven#R) issued a deficiency excise tax
assessment against the Parent Company. The asse¢gsiates to the Parent Company’s use of
P659 worth of Tax Credit Certificates (TCCs) to maytain excise tax obligations from 1993 to
1997. The TCCs were transferred to the Parent @agnfy suppliers as payment for fuel
purchases. The Parent Company contested the BE®@ssment before the Philippine Court of
Tax Appeals (CTA). In July 1999, the CTA ruledtires a fuel supplier of Board of Investments-
registered companies, the Parent Company is afigdatransferee of the TCCs. Following an
unfavorable ruling from the CTA En Banc, Petroredilan appeal to the Philippine Supreme
Court (SC). The SC rendered a Decision in favothef Parent Company on July 28, 2010 and
denied with finality the Commissioner of Internak\Rnue's motion for reconsideration on
September 13, 2010.

In November 1999, the BIR issued a P284 assessagairist the Parent Company for deficiency
excise taxes for the years 1995 to 1997. The sismag results from the cancellation by the
Philippine Department of Finance (DOF) of tax debiemos, the related TCCs and their
assignment to the Parent Company. The Parent Gomgantested the assessment before the
CTA. In August 2006, the CTA denied the Parent @any’s petition, ordering it to pay the BIR
P580 representing the P284 unpaid deficiency eXomsa 1995 to 1997, and 20% interest per
annum computed from December 4, 1999. In July 2€H® Philippine Supreme Court (*SC’)
nullified the assessment against the Parent Comagadyeclared the Parent Company as a valid
transferee of the TCCs. The BIR filed a motionrgonsideration, which remains pending.

In May 2002, the BIR issued a P254 assessmentsidghaParent Company for deficiency excise
taxes for the years 1995 to 1998. The assessm&uts from the cancellation by the DOF of tax
debit memos, the related TCCs and their assignrteerthe Parent Company. The Parent
Company contested the assessment before the CiiAdaly 2007, the CTA second division

denied the Parent Company’'s petition, ordering Ba@gent Company to pay the BIR P601
representing the Parent Company’'s P254 unpaid idebfyg excise taxes for the taxable years
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1995 to 1998, and 25% late payment surcharge afd @6linquency interest per annum
computed from June 27, 2002. The Parent Compapgaded the decision to the CTeh banc,
which ruled in favor of the Parent Company, revegsthe unfavorable decision of the CTA
second division. The BIR is contesting the Cdi\banalecision before the SC where the case is
still pending.

There are duplications in the TCCs subject of kited assessments described above. Excluding
these duplications, the aggregate deficiency extis®s, excluding interest and penalties,
resulting from the cancellation of the subject TG@®unt to P911.

Pandacan Terminal Operations

In November 2001, the City of Manila enacted Citgdidance No. 8027 (“Ordinance 8027”)
reclassifying the areas occupied by the oil tertsimd the Parent Company, Shell and Chevron
from industrial to commercial. This reclassificat made the operation of the oil terminals in
Pandacan, Manila illegal. However, in June 2088,Rarent Company, together with Shell and
Chevron, entered into a Memorandum of UnderstandiMU”) with the City of Manila and
Department of Energy (DOE), agreeing to scale dowarations, recognizing that this was a
sensible and practical solution to reduce the ewnnanpact of Ordinance 8027. In December
2002, in reaction to the MOU, Social Justice Sgc{esJS”) filed a petition with the SC against
the Mayor of Manila asking that the latter be oedeto enforce Ordinance 8027. In April 2003,
the Parent Company filed a petition with the Reglofrial Court (“RTC”) to annul Ordinance
8027 and enjoin its implementation. On the baksstatus quarder issued by the RTC, Mayor
of Manila ceased implementation of Ordinance 8027.

The City of Manila subsequently issued the Compmsive Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance
(“Ordinance 8119”), which applied to the entire yCdf Manila. Ordinance 8119 allowed the

Parent Company (and other non-conforming estabkstish) a seven-year grace period to vacate.
As a result of the passage of Ordinance 8119, wivah thought to effectively repeal Ordinance
8027, in April 2007, the RTC dismissed the petitidad by the Parent Company questioning
Ordinance 8027.

However, on March 7, 2007, in the case filed by,38 SC rendered a decision (the “March 7
Decision”) directing the Mayor of Manila to immetkly enforce Ordinance 8027. On March 12,
2007, the Parent Company, together with Shell ahevfon, filed motions with the SC seeking
intervention and reconsideration of the March 7 iBien, on the ground that the SC failed to
consider supervening events, notably (i) the passaigOrdinance 8119 which supersedes
Ordinance 8027, as well as (ii) the RTC orders @néng the implementation of Ordinance
8027. The Parent Company, Shell, and Chevronratéed the possible ill-effects on the entire
country arising from the sudden closure of theearininals in Pandacan.

On February 13, 2008, the SC resolved to allowRaeent Company, Shell and Chevron to
intervene, but denied their motion for reconsiderat In its February 13 resolution (the
“February 13 Resolution”), the Supreme Court alsolared Ordinance 8027 valid, dissolved all
existing injunctions against the implementationtteé Ordinance 8027, and directed the Parent
Company, Shell and Chevron to submit their rel@cagilans to the RTC.
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The March 7, 2007 decision of the Supreme Couraimecfinal and executory on February 27,
2008.

In compliance with the February 13 Resolution, Baent Company, Shell and Chevron have
submitted their relocation plans to the RTC.

In May 2009, Manila City Mayor Alfredo Lim approve@rdinance No. 8187 (“Ordinance
8187"), which repealed Ordinance 8027 and Ordina8t&9, and permitted the continued
operations of the oil terminals in Pandacan.

In June 2009, petitions were filed with the SC keag the nullification of Ordinance 8187 and
enjoining its implementation. The Parent Compankedfiits Comment-in-Intervention on
December 1, 2009. Thereafter, the Parent Compdag f Manifestation with the SC on
November 30, 2010 stating that it has decided &se®peration of its petroleum product storage
facilities in Pandacan, Manila within 5 years ot fater than January 2016. On January 10, 2011,
Petron filed a Manifestation clarifying that it hast changed its original position that Ordinance
No. 8187 is a valid enactment of the City of Manila

Bataan Real Property Tax Cases

The Parent Company had three real property taxsoagh the Province of Bataan, arising from
three real property tax assessments. The first faasn assessment made by the Municipal
Assessor of Limay, Bataan in 2006 for the amounP86.4 covering the Parent Company’s
isomerization and gas oil hydrotreater facilitiebieth enjoy, among others, a five -year real
property tax exemption under the Oil Deregulati@wlper the Board of Investments Certificates
of Registration. The second was for an assessmadé mlso in 2006 by the Municipal Assessor
of Limay for P17 relating to the leased foresharmaon which the pier of the Parent Company’s
Refinery is located. In 2007, the Bataan Provintraasurer issued a Final Notice of Delinquent
Real Property Tax requiring the Parent Companyettiesthe amount of P2,168 allegedly in
delinquent real property taxes as of SeptembeR@07, based on a third assessment made by the
Provincial Assessor covering a period of 13 yeeomf1994 to 2007. The third assessment cited
the Parent Company’s non-declaration or under-dstoten of machineries and equipment in the
Refinery for real property tax purposes and ittufaito pay the corresponding taxes for the said
period.

The Parent Company timely contested the assessimgifilsrg appeals with the Local Board of
Assessment Appeals (“LBAA”), and posted the neagssarety bonds to stop collection of the
assessed amount.

However, with regard to the third assessment, ribstanding the appeal to the LBAA and the
posting of the surety bond, the Provincial Treasuseting on the basis of the Final Notice of
Delinquent Real Property Tax relating to the trastessment, proceeded with the publication of
the public auction of the assets of the Parent Gampwhich was set for October 17, 2007. Due
to the Provincial Treasurer's refusal to cancel #uetion sale, the Parent Company filed a
complaint for injunction on October 8, 2007 beftine RTC to stop the auction sale. A writ of
injunction stopping the public auction until thadl resolution of the case was issued by the RTC
on November 5, 2007.
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The RTC issued a Decision dated June 25, 2010 diplgoPetron’s position and declared null
and void the demand on Petron for the paymentaifyréaxes in the amount of P1,731 made by
the Provincial Assessor of Bataan and the levyhef droperties of Petron. The Court issued a
Writ of Prohibition permanently prohibiting, preverg and restraining the Provincial Treasurer
of Bataan from conducting a public auction of theperties of Petron or selling the same by
auction, negotiated sale, or any act of disposipending the finality of the disposition by the
LBAA or Central Board of Assessment Appeals (CBAAS3, the case maybe, on the pending
appeal made by Petron from the revised assessmtn@ Brovincial Assessor of Bataan.

On April 15, 2011, Petron and Bataan agreed onnapoomise settlement to terminate all their
pending disputes with respect to all outstandiral peoperty taxes assessed against Petron up to
the end of the year 2011 and to put an end to adyadl prior, existing and future claims by, or
litigation between, them arising from the facts asictcumstances relating to the properties
covered by said tax declarations.

Petron and Bataan filed with the CBAA last April, 2D11, a Joint Motion for the approval of the
Compromise AgreemenOn May 23, 2011, CBAA issued a Joint Decision apppr@ the
Compromise Agreement and dismissing all of Petrbalslity with respect to real property taxes
due on properties until calendar year 2011. Incgff@l CBAA cases are now dismissed.

Guimaras Case

Complaints for Homicide, Less Serious Physical rief and Violation of the Philippine Clean
Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275) were filed against fd@rent Company represented by Messrs.
Nicasio I. Alcantara and Khalid D. Al-Faddagh, fitsmer Chairman and President, respectively,
and the Captain and owner of M/T Solar 1 on June2@Q@9, as a result of the oil slick from the
said vessel.

The Respondents denied the allegations imputednsig#them, as the same accusation was
resolved and dismissed by the Provincial Prosesu@ifice of Guimaras in its resolution dated
March 2, 2007.

On July 14, 2011, the Provincial Prosecutor’s @ffiaf Guimaras issued a Joint Resolution
finding probable cause to indict the owner andGlaetain of M/T Solar 1 and Messrs. Alcantara
and Mr. Faddagh for Violation of Section 28, Paagdr 5 in relation to Section 4 of the Clean
Water Act of 2004.

Messrs. Alcantara and Faddagh filed their Motiom Reconsideration with the Provincial
Prosecutor’s Office of Guimaras on August 1, 20hltlee ground that under Republic Act No.
9483, otherwise known as “The Oil Pollution Compitn Act of 2007”, it is the owner of the
vessel, not the charterer, that is liable for amyspill or pollution damage that may result from
the operation of the said vessel.
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11.Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Objectives and Policies

The Group has significant exposure to the followfigancial risks primarily from its use of
financial instruments:

» Foreign currency risk

* Interest rate risk

» Credit risk

» Liquidity risk

» Commodity price risk

* Other market price risk

This note presents information about the Group’sosyre to each of the foregoing risks, the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for omagag and managing these risks, and the
Group’s management of capital.

The Group’s principal financial instruments includgsh and cash equivalents, debt and equity
securities, bank loans and derivative instrumeritse main purpose of bank loans is to finance

working capital relating to importation of crudedapetroleum products, as well as to partly fund

capital expenditures. The Group has other findragaets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, whichearerated directly from its operations.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivegtitransactions for speculative purposes. The
Group uses hedging instruments to protect its maagn its products from potential price
volatility of crude oil and products. It also ergento short-term forward currency contracts to
hedge its currency exposure on crude oil impomatio

The main risks arising from the Group’s financiatruments are foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commogiprice risk. The BOD regularly reviews and
approves the policies for managing these finanggks. Details of each of these risks are
discussed below, together with the related riskagament structure.

Risk Management Structure

The Group follows an enterprise-wide risk managdanr@amework for identifying, assessing and
addressing the risk factors that affect or maycfis businesses.

The Group’s risk management process is a bottorapgpoach, with each risk owner mandated
to conduct regular assessment of its risk profie dormulate action plans for managing
identified risks. As the Group’s operation is ategrated value chain, risks emanate from every
process, while some could cut across groups. Theltseof these activities flow up to the
Management Committee and, eventually, the BOD jindhe Group’s annual business planning
process.
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Oversight and technical assistance is likewise igeal by corporate units and committees with
special duties. These groups and their functioes a

1. The Financial Planning Unit of the Treasurer's D&pant, which is mandated with the
overall coordination and development of the enisepwide risk management process.

2. The Financial Risk Management Unit of the TreassrBepartment, which is in charge of
foreign exchange hedging transactions.

3. The Transaction Management Unit of Controllers Depant, which provides backroom
support for all hedging transactions.

4. The Corporate Technical & Engineering Services @ravhich oversees strict adherence to
safety and environmental mandates across all iasili

5. The Internal Audit Department, which has been tdskeh the implementation of a risk-
based auditing.

The BOD also created separate board-level entitifs explicit authority and responsibility in
managing and monitoring risks, as follows:

a. The Audit Committee, which ensures the integrityirgérnal control activities throughout
the Group. It develops, oversees, checks andppesees financial management functions
and systems in the areas of credit, market, liqgidiperational, legal and other risks of the
Group, and crisis management. The Internal Audip&tment and the External Auditor
directly report to the Audit Committee regarding thirection, scope and coordination of
audit and any related activities.

b. The Compliance Officer, who is a senior officerRétron reports to the BOD through the
Audit Committee. He monitors compliance with theasions and requirements of the
Corporate Governance Manual, determines any pessiimlations and recommends
corresponding penalties, subject to review and a@brof the BOD. The Compliance
Officer identifies and monitors compliance riskastly, the Compliance Officer represents
the Group before the Securities and Exchange Cosionis(SEC) regarding matters
involving compliance with the Code of Corporate @mance.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s functional currency is the Philippiresp, which is the denomination of the bulk of

the Group’s revenues. The Group’s exposures tdgnrexchange risk arise mainly from United

States (US) dollar-denominated sales as well ashpses principally of crude oil and petroleum

products. As a result of this, the Group maintangvel of US dollar-denominated assets and
liabilities during the period. Foreign exchangskroccurs due to differences in the levels of US
dollar-denominated assets and liabilities.
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The Group pursues a policy of hedging foreign ergearisk by purchasing currency forwards or
by substituting US dollar-denominated liabilitiegtiw peso-based debt. The natural hedge
provided by US dollar-denominated assets is alstofad in hedging decisions. As a matter of
policy, currency hedging is limited to the extehfl60% of the underlying exposure.

The Group is allowed to engage in active risk manant strategies for a portion of its foreign
exchange risk exposure. Loss limits are in plawenitored daily and regularly reviewed by
management.

Information on the Group’s US dollar-denominatedaficial assets and liabilities and their
Philippine peso equivalents as of June 30, 201 1Dswmber 31, 2010 are as follows:

June 30, 2011 December 31,2010
Peso Peso
US Dollar Equivalent US Dollar Equivalent
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents US$399 P17,269 US$648 P28,395
Trade and other receivables 419 18,157 173 7,606
Non-current receivables 2 97 1 29
820 35,523 822 36,030
Liabilities
Drafts and loans payable - - 59 2,573
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product importation 702 30,409 288 12,606
Long-term debt (including
current maturities) 316 13,673 355 15,563
1,018 44,082 702 30,742
Net foreign currency-
denominated monetary assets (US$198) (P8,559) US$120 P5,288

The Group reported net foreign exchange gains atmmumo P172 and P500 for the period
ending June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, wieh translation of its foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities. These mairdylted from the movements of the Philippine
peso against the US dollar as shown in the follgwable:

Peso to US Dollar

December 31, 2009 46.20
June 30, 2010 46.37
December 31, 2010 43.84
June 30, 2011 43.33

The management of foreign currency risk is alsgolmpented by monitoring the sensitivity of
financial instruments to various foreign currenccleange rate scenarios. Foreign exchange
movements affect reported equity through the rethirarnings arising from increases or
decreases in unrealized and realized foreign exjghgains or losses.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivitateeasonably possible change in the US dollar
exchange rate, with all other variables held consta profit before tax and equity as of June 31,

2011 and December 31, 2010:

P1 decrease in the US$
exchange rate

P1 increase in the US$
exchange rate

Effect on Effect on
Income before Effect on Income before Effect on
June 30, 2011 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P384) (P283) P384 P283
Trade and other receivables (88) (393) 88 393
Noncurrent receivables - (2) - 2
(472) (678) 472 678
Drafts and loans payable - - - -
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product 385 586 (385) (586)
importation
Long-term debt (including
current maturities) 316 221 (316) (221)
701 807 (701) (807)
P229 P129 (P229) (P129)

P1 decrease in the US$ L1 increase in the US$ exchange

exchange rate rate
Effect on Effect on
Income before Effect on Income before Effect on
December 31, 2010 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P642) (P455) P642 P455
Trade and other receivables (97) (144) 97 144
Noncurrent receivables - (1) - 1
(739) (600) 739 600
Drafts and loans payable - 59 - (59)
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product 285 202 (285) (202)
importation
Long-term debt_ (_mcludlng 355 249 (355) (249)
current maturities)
640 510 (640) (510)
(P99) (P90) P99 P90

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary duringoén®md depending on the volume of overseas
transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis abovensidered to be representative of the Group’s
currency risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cashwBdrom a financial instrument (cash flow interest
rate risk) or its fair value (fair value intereate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in raairk
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to changestarest rates relates mainly to long-term
borrowings and investment securities. Investmentsoorowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. On the othand, investments or borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow istesge risk.

The Group manages its interest costs by using aication of fixed and variable rate debt
instruments. Management is responsible for momigpthe prevailing market-based interest rates
and ensures that the marked-up rates levied onbadtsowings are most favorable and
benchmarked against the interest rates chargethiey creditor banks.

On the other hand, the Group’s investment polictoisnaintain an adequate yield to match or
reduce the net interest cost from its borrowingsrpo deployment of funds to their intended use
in operations and working capital management. Hanethe Group invests only in high-quality

money market instruments while maintaining the ssagy diversification to avoid concentration

risk.

In managing interest rate risk, the Group aimseiuce the impact of short-term volatility on
earnings. Over the longer term, however, permacbanges in interest rates would have an
impact on profit or loss.

The management of interest rate risk is also sopghed by monitoring the sensitivity of
financial instruments to various standard and rtandard interest rate scenarios. Interest rate
movements affect reported equity through the rethirarnings arising from increases or
decreases in interest income or interest expens@lass fair value changes reported in profit or
loss, if any.

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible 1% in@e@aghe interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased the Groupf# pefore tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) by P155 and P180 in the periodngndune 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively. A 1% decrease in the interest rataldvbave had the equal but opposite effect.
There is no impact on the Group’s other income.
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Interest Rate Risk Table
As at June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thestanch maturity profile of the interest-bearing
financial instruments, together with its gross antsuare shown in the following tables:

June 30, 2011 <1 year 1-<2 years 2-<3 years 3-<éape  4-<5years >5 years Total
Fixed rate
Philippine peso P6,810 P48 P5,248 P48 P4,512 P20,00C P36,666
denominated
Interest rate 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3%
Floating rate
Philippine peso 933 600 300 - - - 1,83:
denominated
net 1M SDA
+ margin, 3- net 1M net 1M
Interest rate mo. Martl/ SDA + SDA +
PDSTF + margin margin
margin
US$ denominated
(expressed in Php) 3,418 3,418 3,418 3,419 - - 13,673
3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos.
Interest rate* Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor +
margin margin margin margin margin
P11,161 P4,066 P8,966 P3,467 P4,512 P20,000 P52,172

*The group reprices every 3 months but has beeengan option to reprice every 6 months.

December 31, 2010 <1 year 1-<2 years 2-<3 years 4 \edrs 4-<5 years >5 years Total
Fixed rate
Philippine peso P6,963 P202 P48 P5,248 P48 P24,511 237,0
denominated
Interest rate 6.4% - 9.3% 6.4%-93% 6.4%-93% 64%-93% 6.88% 6.4%-9.3%
Floating rate
Philippine peso 1,267 600 600 - - - 2,467
denominated
net 1M SDA
+ margin, 3- net 1M net 1M
mo. Martl/ SDA + SDA +
PDSTF + margin margin
margin
Interest rate
US$ denominated
(expressed in Php) 3,459 3,459 3,458 3,458 1,729 - 15,563
3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos.
Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor +
Interest rate margin margin margin margin margin
P11,689 P4,261 P4,106 P8,706 P1,777 PP4,51 P55,050

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to theo@p if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligaiom effectively managing credit risk, the Group
regulates and extends credit only to qualified aretit-worthy customers and counterparties,
consistent with established Group credit policgsidelines and credit verification procedures.
Request for credit facilities from trade customamslergo stages of review by Sales and Finance
Divisions. Approvals, which are based on amountsreflit lines requested, are vested among
line managers and top management that includerdsdent and the Chairman.
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Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure offficial assets is the total carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the face of the cmladetl statement of financial position or in the
notes to the consolidated financial statementsyasmarized below:

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Cash in bank and cash equivalents P19,745 P40,358
Derivative assets 4 34
Trade and other receivables-net 23,029 24,266
Due from affiliates 23,341 22,447
Noncurrent receivables 109 122
P66,228 P87,227

The credit risk for cash in bank and cash equivalemd derivative financial instruments is
considered negligible, since the counterparties raputable entities with gain high quality
external credit ratings. The credit quality of thdésancial assets is considered to be high grade.

In monitoring trade receivables and credit lind® Group maintains up-to-date records where
daily sales and collection transactions of all custrs are recorded in real-time and month-end
statements of accounts are forwarded to custormersobection medium. Finance Division’s
Credit Department regularly reports to managemeadet receivables balances (monthly) and
credit utilization efficiency (semi-annually).

Collaterals. To the extent practicable, the Group also requimdkateral as security for a credit
facility to mitigate risk in trade receivables. Angpthe collaterals held are letters of credit, bank
guarantees, real estate mortgages, and cash bahd=ivat P3,201 and P2,736 as of June 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Thesarises may only be called on or applied
upon default of customers.

Credit Risk ConcentrationThe Group’s exposure to credit risk arises fromadif of
counterparty. Generally, the maximum credit riskasure of trade and other receivables is its
carrying amount without considering collateralcdit enhancements, if any. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk since tBeoup deals with a large number of homogenous
trade customers. The Group does not execute amgrggea in favor of any counterparty.

Credit Quality.In monitoring and controlling credit extended taunterparty, the Group adopts a
comprehensive credit rating system based on fiahraodd non-financial assessments of its
customers. Financial factors being considered cm@grof the financial standing of the customer
while the non-financial aspects include but are limoited to the assessment of the customer’s
nature of the business, management profile, indiistckground, payment habit and both present
and potential business dealings with the Group.

Class A “High Grade” are accounts with strong ficiahcapacity and business performance and
with the lowest default risk.
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Class B “Moderate Grade” refer to accounts of &attery financial capability and credit
standing but with some elements of risks whereagerheasure of control is necessary in order to
mitigate risk of default.

Class C “Low Grade” are accounts with high proligbdf delinquency and default.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that the Growll encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are kettby delivering cash of another financial asset.

The Group’s objectives in managing its liquiditgkiare as follows: a) to ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times; b) to meet conmants as they arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; c) to be able to access fumieg needed at the least possible cost; and d) to
maintain an adequate time spread of refinancinginiats.

The Group constantly monitors and manages itsdiguposition, liquidity gaps or surplus on a
daily basis. A committed stand-by credit faciliyorih several local banks is also available to
ensure availability of funds when necessary. Theu@ralso uses derivative instruments such as
forwards and swaps to manage liquidity.

The table below summarizes the maturity profilettoed Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted paysesed for liquidity management as of June
30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Carrying Contractual lyear >lyear >2year Over5
June 30, 2011 Amount  Cash Flow orless -2years -5years years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents P22,552 P22552 P22,552 P- P- P-
Trade and other receivables 23,029 23,029 23,029 - - -
Due from affiliates 23,341 23,401 1,025 21,911 465 -
Derivative assets 4 4 4 - - -
Financial assets at FVPL 191 191 191 - - -
AFS financial assets 1,186 1,378 191 112 1,075 -
Noncurrent receivables 109 109 - 35 43 31

Financial liabilities
Draft and loans payable 24,155 24,315 24,315 - - -
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses

(excluding taxes payable) 22,979 22,979 22,979 - - -
Derivative liabilities 6 6 6 - - -
Long-term debt (including

current maturities) 51,613 68,944 14,687 7,175 24,702 22,380
Cash bonds 300 304 255 33 15 1
Cylinder deposits 317 317 - - 317 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 51 51 - 1 32 18
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Carrying Contractual lyear >lyear >2year Over5

December 31, 2010 Amount  Cash Flow orless -2years -5years vyears
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents P43,984 P43,984 P43,984 P- P- P-
Trade and other receivables 24,266 24,266 24,266 - - -
Due from affiliates 22,447 22,447 1,444 21,003 - -
Derivative assets 34 34 34 - - -
Financial assets at FVPL 193 193 193 - - -
AFS financial assets 1,161 1,372 250 57 1,065 -
Noncurrent receivables 122 122 - 34 55 33

Financial liabilities
Draft and loans payable 32,457 32,733 32,733 - - -
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses

(excluding taxes payable) 17,375 17,375 17,375 - - -
Derivative liabilities 30 30 30 - - -
Long-term debt (including

current maturities) 54,402 73,619 15,553 7,386 22,648 28,032
Cash bonds 275 284 218 45 19 2
Cylinder deposits 274 274 - - 274 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 60 60 - 10 27 23

Commodity Price Risk
Commodity price risk is the risk that future cakiwls from a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices.

To minimize the Company’s risk of potential losskee to volatility of international crude and

product prices, the Group implemented commoditygivegl for petroleum products. The Group
enters into various commodity derivatives to (ajtpct margins of MOPS (Mean of Platts of
Singapore) based sales and (b) protect produchiakies from downward price risk. Hedging

policy includes the use of commodity price swapsgjithg of put options, and use of collars and 3-
way options. Decisions are guided by the conditiees and approved by the Group’s
management.

Other Market Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its inwents carried at fair value (FVPL and AFS
financial assets). The Group manages its riskrayifiom changes in market price by monitoring
the changes in the market price of the investments.

Capital Management

The Group’s capital management policies and program to provide an optimal capital
structure that would ensure the Group’s abilitycémtinue as a going concern while at the same
time provide adequate returns to the shareholdersuch, it considers the best trade-off between
risks associated with debt financing and relativhigher cost of equity funds. Likewise,
compliance with the debt to equity ratio covendritank loans has to be ensured.
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An enterprise resource planning system is used daitor and forecast the Group’s overall
financial position. The Group may adjust the amafrdividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares as well as increase or decrease assets latdullities depending on the prevailing internal
and external business conditions.

The Group monitors capital via carrying amount @diiey as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s capital for thevered reporting period is summarized in the
table below:

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Total assets P161,386 P161,816
Total liabilities 103,406 108,472
Total equity 57,980 53,344
Debt to equity ratio 1.8:1 2.0:1

There were no changes in the Group’s approachpitatananagement during the period.

12.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Date of RecognitionThe Group recognizes a financial asset or a firsnicability in the
consolidated statements of financial position wherbecomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. In the case of aul@gway purchase or sale of financial assets,
recognition is done using settlement date accogntin

Initial Recognition of Financial InstrumentBinancial instruments are recognized initially at f
value of the consideration given (in case of aeiss received (in case of a liability). The ialti
measurement of financial instruments, except fos¢hdesignated at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), includes transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in thkowing categories: held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, available for sale (AFS) financialedssfinancial assets at FVPL and loans and
receivables. The Group classifies its financiabilides as either FVPL or other financial
liabilities. The classification depends on the s for which the investments are acquired and
whether they are quoted in an active market. Meamegt determines the classification of its
financial assets and financial liabilities at iaitrecognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates such designation at every reportitgy da

Determination of Fair ValueThe fair value for financial instruments tradedaictive markets at
the reporting date is based on their quoted markeé or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positiongithout any deduction for transaction costs.
When current bid and ask prices are not availathie, price of the most recent transaction
provides evidence of the current fair value as lasghere is no significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.
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For all other financial instruments not listed m active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuateehniques include the discounted cash flow
method, comparison to similar instruments for whiohrket observable prices exist, options
pricing models and other relevant valuation models.

‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active maskdifferent from the fair value

of the other observable current market transaciiotise same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data frorseolkable market, the Group recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and faiwer (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss unless it
gualifies for recognition as some other type okasén cases where use is made of data which are
not observable, the difference between the traisaptice and model value is only recognized in
the consolidated statement of income when the snpetome observable or when the instrument
is derecognized. For each transaction, the Groeterchines the appropriate method of
recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPLA financial asset is classified at FVPL if it isaskified as held for
trading or is designated as such upon initial rademn. Financial assets are designated at FVPL
if the Group manages such investments and makebgme and sale decisions based on their fair
value in accordance with the Group’s documentell nmenagement or investment strategy.
Derivative instruments (including embedded derixed), except those covered by hedge
accounting relationships, are classified underc¢htegory.

Financial assets are classified as held for tradititey are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term.

Financial assets may be designated by managemigntiatrecognition as at FVPL, when any of
the following criteria is met:

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduties inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or réziogngains or losses on a different
basis;

= the assets are part of a group of financial asgeish are managed and their performances
are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordaiitea documented risk management or
investment strategy; or

= the financial instrument contains an embedded d#éve, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows oisitclear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recognized.

The Group uses commodity price swaps to protecimiéggin on petroleum products from

potential price volatility of international crudedh product prices. It also enters into short-term
forward currency contracts to hedge its currengyosxre on crude oil importations. In addition,
the Company has identified and bifurcated embeddezign currency derivatives from certain

non-financial contracts.
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Derivatives instruments are initially recognizedfait value on the date in which a derivative
transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and swbsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are presented in the separate stateaidtancial position as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fatue is negative. Gains and losses from changes
in fair value of these derivatives are recognizedan the caption marked-to-market gain (losses)
included as part of “Other Income (Expenses)” ie #eparate statement of comprehensive
income.

The fair values of freestanding and bifurcated fmadvcurrency transactions are calculated by
reference to current exchange rates for contraittssamilar maturity profiles. The fair values of
commodity swaps are determined based on quotemebtiom counterparty banks.

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL and derivadisgets are included in this category.
The carrying values of financial assets under¢hiegory amounted to P195 and P277 as of June
30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Loans and Receivablekoans and receivables are non-derivative finanesslets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are ooteg in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or rstterm resale and are not designated as AFS
financial assets or financial assets at FVPL.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and rablkes are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairmentalue. Any interest earned on loans and
receivables shall be recognized as part of “Intare®me” in profit and loss on an accrual basis.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accoany discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are integral part of the effective inderate. The periodic amortization is also included
as part of “Interest income” in the consolidatedtesnents of income. Gains or losses are
recognized in profit or loss when loans and reddasare derecognized or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks whichtatedsat face value. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are tigadonvertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of chasgn value.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade dmer oeceivables, due from affiliates and
noncurrent receivables are included in this categor

The combined carrying values of financial assetdeurthis category amounted to P69,031 and
P90,819 as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2€ddectively.

HTM InvestmentsHTM investments are quoted non-derivative finan@asets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for Whtee Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Whereet Group sells other than an insignificant
amount of HTM investments, the entire category \@ohk tainted and reclassified as AFS
financial assets. After initial measurement, thesestments are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less impent in value. Any interest earned on the
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HTM investments shall be recognized as part ofeflest income” in the consolidated statements
of income on an accrual basis. Amortized costlsuwated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees that are intguaet of the effective interest rate. The periodic
amortization is also included as part of “Interestome” in the consolidated statements of
income. Gains or losses are recognized in profitloss when the HTM investments are

derecognized or impaired, as well as through theramation process.

As of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the&nas no investments accounted under this
category.

AFS Financial Assets.AFS financial assets are non-derivative financidess that are either
designated in this category or not classified ity af the other financial asset categories.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are meatatefair value and changes therein, other than
impairment losses and foreign currency differermesAFS debt instruments, are recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented in thieefQeserves” in equity. The effective yield
component of AFS debt securities, as well as thgaoh of restatement on foreign currency-
denominated AFS investment securities, is repowsdpart of “Interest income” in the
consolidated statement of income. The unrealizetsgand losses arising from the changes in fair
value of AFS financial assets, net of tax, are wketl from profit and loss and are recognized as
other comprehensive income reported in the corstadistatement of comprehensive income and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equitler “Other Reserves” account. Any interest
earned on AFS debt securities shall be recogniggzhd of “Interest income” in the consolidated
statement of income on an accrual basis. Dividealsed on holding AFS equity securities are
recognized as “Dividend income” when the right afllection has been established. When
individual AFS financial assets are either derecogph or impaired, the related accumulated
unrealized gains or losses previously reportedtggue transferred to and recognized in profit or
loss.

Where the Group holds more than one investmenti@énsame security, these are deemed to be
disposed on a first-in, first-out basis. Interest alividends earned on holding AFS financial
assets are recognized in “Other Income” accounhénconsolidated statement of income when
the right to receive payment has been establishied.losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized as impairment losspsofit or loss.

AFS financial assets also include unquoted egugyruments with fair values which cannot be
reliably determined. These instruments are caraiedost less impairment in value, if any. The
Group’s investments in debt are classified undisrdhategory.

The carrying values of financial assets under ¢hiegory amounted to P1,186 and P1,161 as of
June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL.Financial liabilities are classified under thisegry through the
fair value option. Derivative instruments (inclodiembedded derivatives) with negative fair
values are also classified under this category.
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The Group carries financial liabilities at FVPL ngitheir fair values and reports fair value
changes in the consolidated statement of income.

The carrying values of financial liabilities undbrs category amounted to P6 and P30 as of
June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Other Financial Liabilities.This category pertains to financial liabilities tlaae not designated or

classified as at FVPL. After initial measuremeather financial liabilities are carried at

amortized cost using the effective interest ratehowe Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any premium or discount and any dieattributable transaction costs that are
considered an integral part of the effective irderate of the liability.

Included in this category are the Group’s liaksktiarising from its short term loans, liabilities f
crude oil and petroleum product importation, tradd other payables, long-term debt, cash bond,
cylinder deposits and other non-current liabilities

The combined carrying values of financial liabdgiunder this category amounted to P99,415 and
P104,843 as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, &&xkctively.

Debt Issue Costs

Debt issue costs are considered as an adjustmém &ffective yield of the related debt and are
deferred and amortized using the effective interast method. When a loan is paid, the related
unamortized debt issue costs at the date of repatyane charged against current operations.

Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivativesequéred to be separated from host
contracts when the Group becomes a party to thieamin

An embedded derivative is separated from the ham#tract and accounted for as a derivative if all
of the following conditions are met: a) the econornaracteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the econochigracteristics and risks of the host contract; b)
a separate instrument with the same terms as thedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and c) the hybrid or combined nastent is not recognized at FVPL.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a changeenetms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise beunegl.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financiabiliaes
Financial AssetsA financial asset (or, where applicable, a paradinancial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognizéen:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asseiredp
= the Group retains the right to receive cash flovesnf the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material dglto a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or
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= the Group has transferred its rights to receiveh démws from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks eswlards of the asset; or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the sidnd rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all thegiakd rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the egfetite Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the fofna guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying anmtaf the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be requirecpay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the @dtion under the liability

is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an exgsfinancial liability is replaced by another

from the same lender on substantially differenmtgror the terms of an existing liability are

substantially modified, such an exchange or madlifon is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a newliity. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at reporting date whether acfalaasset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assetddemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is

objective evidence of impairment as a result of onenore events that have occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred lesent) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial agsethe group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Assets Carried at Amortized Codtor assets carried at amortized cost such as laads
receivables, the Group first assesses whethertolgesvidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually sigrégiind, or collectively for financial assets that ace
individually significant. If no objective evidenod impairment has been identified for a particular
financial asset that was individually assessed Gheup includes the asset as part of a group of
financial assets pooled according to their credk characteristics and collectively assesses the
group for impairment. Assets that are individuadlgsessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recogniaednot included in the collective impairment
assessment.

Evidence of impairment for specific impairment pegps may include indications that the
borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencingaficial difficulty, default or delinquency in
principal or interest payments, or may enter in@nksuptcy or other form of financial
reorganization intended to alleviate the finanaahdition of the borrower. For collective
impairment purposes, evidence of impairment majude observable data on existing economic
conditions or industry-wide developments indicatthgt there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of the related assets.
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If there is objective evidence of impairment, threoaint of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the pressdne of estimated future cash flows

(excluding future credit losses) discounted atfthancial asset’'s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed atiahitecognition). Time value is generally not

considered when the effect of discounting the dashs is not material. If a loan or receivable

has a variable rate, the discount rate for meaguaity impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate, adjusted for the original credik nsemium. For collective impairment purposes,
impairment loss is computed based on their resgedefault and historical loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be redudbdredirectly or through use of an allowance
account. The impairment loss for the period shall rbcognized in profit or loss. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairmerst diexreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impannwas recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent relefsm impairment loss is recognized in profit

or loss, to the extent that the carrying amourthefasset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.

AFS Financial Assetdf an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amoumhprising the difference
between the cost (net of any principal payment amartization) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset preslypvecognized in profit or loss, is transferred
from equity to profit or loss. Reversals in respaotquity instruments classified as AFS financial
assets are not recognized in profit or loss. Raalgrof impairment losses on debt instruments are
recognized in profit or loss, if the increase ifr fealue of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairniessg was recognized in profit or loss.

In the case of an unquoted equity instrument a dérivative asset linked to and must be settled
by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument, fohieh its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, the amount of impairment loss is measasethe difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimhtede cash flows from the asset discounted
using its historical effective rate of return o tisset.

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Daaiid Equity
From the perspective of the issuer, a financialrumsent is classified as debt instrument if it
provides for a contractual obligation to:

= deliver cash or another financial asset to anathéty;

= exchange financial assets or financial liabilitveish another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the Group; or

= satisfy the obligation other than by the exchanfja éixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equitgr&s.

If the Group does not have an unconditional rightwvoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, thegaltion meets the definition of a financial liabyli
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Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are effand the net amount is reported in the

consolidated statements of financial position gl @nly if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and theranigntention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simwdtarsly. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements, and the related assets arntitikgbare presented gross in the consolidated

statements of financial position.

The table below presents a comparison by categboamying amounts and fair values of the
Group’s financial instruments as of June 30, 20&tdnber 31, 2010:

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Financial assets (FA):

Cash and cash equivalents P22,552 P22,552 P43,984 P43,984
Trade and other receivables 23,029 23,029 24,266 24,266
Due from affiliates 23,341 23,341 22,447 22,447
Long-term receivables 109 109 122 122
Loans and receivables 69,031 69,031 90,819 90,819
AFS financial assets 1,186 1,186 1,161 1,161
Financial assets at FVPL 191 191 193 193
Derivative assets 4 4 34 34
FA at FVPL 195 195 227 227
Total financial assets P70,412 P70,412 P92,207 P92,207
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June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

Financial liabilities (FL):
Short-term loans P24,155 P24,155 P32,457 P32,457
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product
importation 16,939 16,939 11,194 11,194
Trade and other payables
(excluding specific taxes

and other taxes payable) 6,040 6,040 6,181 6,181
Long-term debt including

current portion 51,613 51,613 54,402 54,402
Cash bonds 300 300 275 275
Cylinder deposits 317 317 274 274
Other noncurrent liabilities 51 51 60 60

FL at amortized cost 99,415 99,415 104,843 104,843
Derivative liabilities 6 6 30 30
Total financial liabilities P99,421 P99,421 P104,873 P104,873

The following methods and assumptions are usedstimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments and when it is practicablestimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Reckeisa®ind Noncurrent ReceivableEhe
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents arelvables approximates fair value primarily
due to the relatively short-term maturities of #néigsancial instruments. In the case of long-term
receivables, the fair value is based on the presaoe of expected future cash flows using the
applicable discount rates based on current maskes 1of identical or similar quoted instruments.

Derivatives. The fair values of freestanding and bifurcated fmdvcurrency transactions are
calculated by reference to current forward excharages for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. Mark-to-market valuation in 2011 and 20df0commodity hedges were based on the
forecasted crude and product prices by Mitsui & @mmmodity Risk Management Ltd.
(MCRM), an independent trading group.

Financial Assets at FVPL and AFS Financial Asset§he fair values of publicly traded
instruments and similar investments are based otedunarket prices in an active market. For
debt instruments with no quoted market prices, asopable estimate of their fair values is
calculated based on the expected cash flows frenmdtruments discounted using the applicable
discount rates of comparable instruments quotedttive markets. Unquoted equity securities are
carried at cost less impairment.
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Long-term Debt — Floating Rat¥ariable rate loans are repriced every three mdhthcarrying
value approximates its fair value because of recegtlar repricing based on current market
rates.

Cash BondsFair value is estimated as the present value dtialte cash flows discounted using
the market rates for similar types of instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments aceogdto the type of financial risk being
managed and the details of freestanding and embeddevative financial instruments are
discussed below.

The Group enters into various commodity derivato@ntracts to manage its exposure on
commodity price risk. The portfolio is a mixture ioistruments including forwards, swaps and
options covering the Group’s requirements on crafleand finished products. These include
freestanding and embedded derivatives found in bostracts, which are not designated as
accounting hedges. Changes in fair value of thesteuments are recognized directly in profit or
loss.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments acoogdto the type of financial risk being
managed are discussed below.

Freestanding Derivatives
Freestanding derivatives consist of commodity demnes and currency derivatives entered into
by the Group.

Currency Forwards

As of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the @oynpas outstanding foreign currency
forward contracts with aggregate notional amountU&$155 and US$15, respectively with
various maturities in July 2011. As of June 301 2Qhe net negative fair value of these currency
forwards amounted to P1.

Currency Options
The Company has no outstanding currency optioneageats as of June 30, 2011 and December
31, 2010.

Commodity Swaps

The Group has outstanding swap agreements covetsngil requirements, with various
maturities. Under the agreements, payment is redider by the Group or its counterparty for the
difference between the hedged fixed price anddleyant monthly average index price.

The Company has outstanding swap agreements cgvigsiiuel and crude requirements, with
various maturities in 2011. Under the agreemesyment is made either by the Company or its
counterparty for the difference between the agffeest! price of fuels and crude and the price
based on the relevant price index. The outstanelingvalent notional quantities covered by the
commodity swaps as of June 30, 2011 and Decemhe2@D were 5.7 MMB and 1.5 MMB,
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respectively. As of June 30, 2011 and December2810, the total negative mark-to-market
loss of these swaps amounted to P128 and P32 cteghe

Commaodity Options

The Company has outstanding commodity option agee¢sras of June 30, 2011 and December
31, 2010 with notional quantities totaling 0.9 MMBd 2.8 MMB, respectively. The respective
net positive fair value of these hedges amounted1@? and P234 as of the June 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.

Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivativegquged to be separated from the host
contracts when the Group becomes a party to thieamin

An embedded derivative is separated from the hmdract and accounted for as a derivative if all
of the following conditions are met: a) the econoroharacteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the econochigracteristics and risks of the host contract; b)
a separate instrument with the same terms as thedaad derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and c) the hybrid or combined rastent is not recognized at FVPL.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a changeennetms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise beunegl.

The Group’s embedded derivatives include curremivdtives (forwards and options) embedded
in non-financial contracts.

Embedded Currency Forwards

As of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thé aatatanding notional amount of currency
forwards embedded in non-financial contracts amedirto US$4 and US$151, respectively.
These non-financial contracts consist mainly oeifgn currency-denominated service contracts,
purchase orders and sales agreements. The embleddedds are not clearly and closely related
to their respective host contracts. As of June2BQ,1 and December 31, 2010, the net negative
fair value of these embedded currency forwards amealto PO.70 and P4, respectively.

For the periods ended June 30, 2011 and Decemb&030, the Group recognized marked-to-
market losses from freestanding and embedded desga amounting to P1 and P59,
respectively.

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 7, financial assets aruilitias measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position are categorized in accordanath the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy
groups financial assets and liabilities into thieeels based on the significance of inputs used in
measuring the fair value of the financial assetslabilities.
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The table below analyzes financial instrumentsiedrat fair value, by valuation method as of
June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010. The difféegats have been defined as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ratglfor identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéithin Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirkct

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thaéamot based on observable market data.

June 30, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial assets at FVPL P191 P- P191
Derivative assets - 4 4
AFS financial assets - 1,186 1,186
Financial Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 6 6
December 31, 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Total

P

Financial assets at FVPL P193 - P193
Derivative assets - 34 34
AFS financial assets - 1,161 1,161
Financial Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 30 30

As of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, thepg3maa no financial instruments valued based
on Level 3. During the year, there were no tramsstegtween Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out ofl [3=faér value measurements.

13.Events after the Reporting Date

On July 12, 2011, the BOD approved a cash dividgreR.382/share to preferred stockholders of
record as of August 10, 2011, payable on Septe&z011.

14.0Other Matters
a. There were no unusual items as to nature and anadfatting assets, liabilities, equity, net
income or cash flows, except those stated in Mamagés Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Position and Performance.

b. There were no seasonal aspects that had a mafeed on the financial position or financial
performance of the Group.
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c. There were no material off-statements of finangalsition transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), awlther relationship of the Group with
unconsolidated entities or other persons createshglthe reporting period, except for the
outstanding derivative transactions entered by Gneup as of and for the period ended
June 30, 2011.

d. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or tainges that will have a material
impact on the Group’s liquidity.

Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

After growing robustly in 2010 due to high electigpending, the domestic economy slowed
down in 2011. GDP in the 1Q11 expanded by 4.6% #fie strong 8.4% growth in the same
period last year. Although fundamentals remainedlthg with increasing household
consumption and high capital inflows, a slowdowrgnmowth was observed. The slowdown
was due to the rising commodity prices, particylad fuel, lower growth of remittances due
to the turmoil in the Middle East and North Afriead the tragedy in Japan, lower direct
foreign investments, and a decline in governmeahdmg. Government spending was limited
as it aimed to improve the fiscal position of thauwctry and has become more stringent in
releasing funds for infrastructure and other sqaiajects.

91-Day Treasury-Bill Rate

91-day T-bills averaged 1.2% in the first half dil2, substantially lower than the same
period last year of 3.9% and FY 2010 average d¥3Interest rates in 2011 have been low as
liquidity in the financial markets remained suféoi.

Peso-Dollar Exchange Rate

The local currency sustained its strength and aeetd@43.5/$ in the first half of 2011 from
2010 FY average of P45.1/$ antf Balf 2010 average of P45.8/$. The continuouslyvijrg
OFW remittances, exports, and strong portfolio stneents contributed to the peso’s
appreciation. The Dollar’s general weakness dubddJS’ fragile economy and current debt
situation also benefitted other currencies likefibso.

Inflation
Inflation averaged 4.3% in the first half of 20]ust equal to the average inflation registered
in the same period last year, but up from FY 20B089 average. Prices of fuel, light, water,

and services have been higher in the first halfgamed to end 2010. The average inflation as
of the first half still remains within the governniés target inflation of 3-5% for FY 2011.

Dubai price

Dubai crude averaged $105.8/bbl in the first h&l2@11, a large leap from the $77.1/bbl FY
average in 2010. The surge of crude prices wggdred by the heightened turmoil in the oil-
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exporting regions Middle East and North Africa, rding some supply of crude. Crude
prices were also boosted by an improved world erhdnd outlook, high investment in the
crude futures market due to the weakness of tHardahd the strength of the equities market.
Industry Oil Demand

Data from DOE shows that as of April 2011, totdliedustry demand dropped by 7.1% from
311.2MBD in the same period last year to only 2894BD this year. The rising prices of
fuels in 2011 affected industry demand. Motoristdustries, and households tend to conserve
fuel consumption during times of high prices.

Tight Industry Competition

Competition remains stiff with the new players iemplenting different marketing strategies
and aggressively expanding. As of YTD April 201he tnew players (excluding direct
imports) have collectively cornered around 25.7%thef total oil market. Collectively, the
new players are leading the LPG market segment4uitfi% market share.

Updates on 2011 Capital Program

The 2011 capital program endorsed last Decembey B0R88.6 billion. Of this amount P22.8
billion has already been approved and includesigbainding for the refinery expansion
project, service station network expansion, conguamlities, asphalt facilities, maintenance
and other efficiency projects.

. Known trends, events or uncertainties that havednatat are reasonably expected to have a
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales oremees or income from continuing
operation.

lllegal Trading Practices

Cases of smuggling and illegal trading (e.g. “blodée” retailing, illegal refilling) continue to
be a concern. These illegal practices have resirtadfair competition among players.

Existing or Probable Government Requlation

EO 890: Removing Import Duties on All Crude andir®ef Petroleum Product#fter the
ASEAN Trade in Goods Agreement (ATIGA) was implengeh starting 2010, tariff rate
structure in the oil industry was distorted withude and product imports from ASEAN
countries enjoying zero tariff while crude and prodimports from outside the ASEAN are
levied 3%. To level the playing field, Petron filedpetition with the Tariff Commission to
apply the same tariff duty on crude and petroleundpct imports, regardless of source. In
June 2010, the government approved Petron’s pettinal issued Executive Order 890 which
eliminates import duties on all crude and petroleproducts regardless of source. The
reduction of duties took effect on July 4, 2010.
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Biofuels Act of 2006.The Biofuels Act of 2006 mandates that ethanol atsepp% of total
gasoline volumes, and diesels contain 2% CME (c&tbyh ester). By 2011, all gasoline
grades should contain 10% ethanol.

The Department of Energy circular (DC 2011-02-008igned February 6, 2011 further
elaborates that the 10% ethanol blend shall be atandbeginning August 26, 2011, subject
to exempt gasoline grades. These exempt gasolasegrare regular gasoline with RON 81
for use of off-road engines, farm equipment andlsmatorized bancas; regular gasoline
with RON 87 for use of motorcycles and premium gasoline with minimum RON of 97.
By February 6, 2012 or upon full implementation,galsoline grades, no exemptions, shall be
required to contain 10% ethanol. Full implementatall be subject to review 30 days before
February 6, 2012 to determine its economic viabditven availability of supply and ethanol
prices.

To produce compliant fuels, the Parent Companystac in CME (coco methyl esther)
injection systems at the refinery and depots. Rodhe mandatory blending of ethanol into
gasoline by 2009, the Parent Company already dtaw#ling ethanol blended gasoline in
selected service stations in Metro Manila in Ma9&0

Renewable Energy Act of 2008he Renewable Energy Act signed in December 2008

to promote development and commercialization ofeweable and environment-friendly
energy resources (e.g. biomass, solar, wind) threagious tax incentives. Renewable energy
developers will be given 7-year income tax holidagyer generated from these sources will
be VAT-exempt, and facilities to be used or imponell also have tax incentives.

Laws on Oil Pollution.To address issues on marine pollution and oilagel the MARINA
mandated the use of double-hull vessels for tramisigoblack products beginning end-2008
and by January 2012 for white products.

Petron has been using double-hull vessels in taatisg all black products and some white
products already.

Clean Air Act.Petron invested in a Gasoil Hydrotreater Plantiargh Isomerization Plant to
enable it to produce diesel and gasoline compliattit the standards set by law.

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) BillThe LPG Act of 2009 aims to ensure safe practiogs a
guality standards and mitigate unfair competitionthe LPG sector. LPG cylinder seal
suppliers must obtain a license and certificatidnqoality, health and safety from the
Department of Energy before they are allowed taaipe LPG cylinder requalifiers, repairers
and scrapping centers, will also have to obtaiicenke from the Department of Trade and
Industry. The Bill also imposes penalties on undied, underdelivering, illegal refilling and
storage, sale or distribution of LPG-filled cylindewithout seals, illegal possession of LPG
cylinder seal, hoarding, and importation of usedsecond-hand LPG cylinders, refusal of
inspection, and non-compliance to standards
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f.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent fircgal obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or accelerationrobaligation.

Tax Credit Certificates Related Cases

In 1998, the BIR issued a deficiency excise taxessment against the Parent Company. The
assessment relates to the Parent Company’s usgbefworth of TCCs to pay certain excise
tax obligations from 1993 to 1997. The TCCs weamndferred to the Parent Company by
suppliers as payment for fuel purchases. The Pa@mpany contested the BIR’s
assessment before the CTA. In July 1999, the Qilédrthat, as a fuel supplier of Board of
Investments-registered companies, the Parent Companqualified transferee of the TCCs.
Following an unfavorable ruling from the CTA En BarPetron filed an appeal to the SC.
The SC rendered a Decision in favor of the Parem@any on July 28, 2010 and denied with
finality the Commissioner of Internal Revenue's imotffor reconsideration on September 13,
2010.

In November 1999, the BIR issued a P284 assessagaihst the Parent Company for
deficiency excise taxes for the years 1995 to 199he assessment results from the
cancellation by the DOF of tax debit memos, thateel TCCs and their assignment to the
Parent Company. The Parent Company contesteds#essament before the CTA. In August
2006, the CTA denied the Parent Company’'s petitmnaering it to pay the BIR P580

representing the P284 unpaid deficiency excise fi®85 to 1997, and 20% interest per
annum computed from December 4, 1999. In July 28€® SC nullified the assessment
against the Parent Company and declared the P@mnpany as a valid transferee of the
TCCs. The BIR filed a motion for reconsideratiaich remains pending.

In May 2002, the BIR issued a P254 assessment sigai@ Parent Company for deficiency
excise taxes for the years 1995 to 1998. The sismad results from the cancellation by the
DOF of tax debit memos, the related TCCs and @msignment to the Parent Company. The
Parent Company contested the assessment befof@Tihe In May 2007, the CTA second
division denied the Parent Company’s petition, ardgthe Parent Company to pay the BIR
P601 representing the Parent Company’s P254 umjediciency excise taxes for the taxable
years 1995 to 1998, and 25% late payment surclaang@0% delinquency interest per annum
computed from June 27, 2002. The Parent Compapgaded the decision to the CTen
banc,which ruled in favor of the Parent Company, revegshe unfavorable decision of the
CTA second division. The BIR is contesting the Ca@f\bancdecision before the SC where
the case is still pending.

There are duplications in the TCCs subject of theed assessments described above.

Excluding these duplications, the aggregate defoyieexcise taxes, excluding interest and
penalties, resulting from the cancellation of thbject TCCs amount to P911.
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Pandacan Terminal Operations

In November 2001, the City of Manila enacted Ordoe 8027 reclassifying the areas
occupied by the oil terminals of the Parent Compa&thell and Chevron from industrial to
commercial. This reclassification made the opemabf the oil terminals in Pandacan,
Manila illegal. However, in June 2002, the Par€umpany, together with Shell and
Chevron, entered into an MOU with the City of Mandnd DOE, agreeing to scale down
operations, recognizing that this was a sensibtepaactical solution to reduce the economic
impact of Ordinance 8027. In December 2002, irctrea to the MOU, SJS filed a petition
with the SC against the Mayor of Manila asking thia¢ latter be ordered to enforce
Ordinance 8027. In April 2003, the Parent Comphleg a petition with the RTC to annul
Ordinance 8027 and enjoin its implementation. B ltasis of atatus quaorder issued by
the RTC, Mayor of Manila ceased implementation adi@ance 8027.

The City of Manila subsequently issued Ordinanc&981vhich applied to the entire City of
Manila. Ordinance 8119 allowed the Parent Compdapd other non-conforming
establishments) a seven-year grace period to vadete result of the passage of Ordinance
8119, which was thought to effectively repeal Oadlice 8027, in April 2007, the RTC
dismissed the petition filed by the Parent Compgumgstioning Ordinance 8027.

However, on March 7, 2007, in the case filed by,3B8 SC rendered March 7 Decision
directing the Mayor of Manila to immediately enfer©rdinance 8027. On March 12, 2007,
the Parent Company, together with Shell and Cheitad motions with the SC seeking

intervention and reconsideration of the March 7iBien, on the ground that the SC failed to
consider supervening events, notably (i) the passdgOrdinance 8119 which supersedes
Ordinance 8027, as well as (ii) the RTC orders @néng the implementation of Ordinance
8027. The Parent Company, Shell, and Chevron ratded the possible ill-effects on the

entire country arising from the sudden closurehefail terminals in Pandacan.

On February 13, 2008, the SC resolved to allowRheent Company, Shell and Chevron to
intervene, but denied their motion for reconsiderat In its February 13 resolution (the

“February 13 Resolution”), the SC also declaredi@udce 8027 valid, dissolved all existing

injunctions against the implementation of the Oagice 8027, and directed the Parent
Company, Shell and Chevron to submit their rel@cagilans to the RTC.

The March 7, 2007 decision of the SC became findlexecutory on February 27, 2008.

In compliance with the February 13 Resolution, Ragent Company, Shell and Chevron have
submitted their relocation plans to the RTC.

In May 2009, Manila City Mayor Alfredo Lim approvedrdinance 8187, which repealed
Ordinance 8027 and Ordinance 8119, and permittedctintinued operations of the oil
terminals in Pandacan.

In June 2009, petitions were filed with the SC,ksag the nullification of Ordinance 8187
and enjoining its implementation. The Parent Corgddad its Comment-in-Intervention on
December 1, 2009. Thereafter, the Parent Compé#ey & Manifestation with the Supreme
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Court on November 30, 2010 stating that it hasdgzgtito cease operation of its petroleum
product storage facilities in Pandacan, Manila inith years or not later than January 2016.
On January 10, 2011, Petron filed a Manifestatitarifging that it has not changed its
original position that Ordinance No. 8187 is adanactment of the City of Manila.

Bataan Real Property Tax Cases

The Parent Company had three real property taxsoagh the Province of Bataan, arising
from three real property tax assessments. Theé \iess for an assessment made by the
Municipal Assessor of Limay, Bataan in 2006 for #maount of P86.4 covering the Parent
Company’s isomerization and gas oil hydrotreateilifees which enjoy, among others, a five
-year real property tax exemption under the Oil dgetation Law per the Board of
Investments Certificates of Registration. The sdowas for an assessment made also in 2006
by the Municipal Assessor of Limay for P17 relatinghe leased foreshore area on which the
pier of the Parent Company’s Refinery is locatéu.2007, the Bataan Provincial Treasurer
issued a Final Notice of Delinquent Real Propesy Tequiring the Parent Company to settle
the amount of P2,168 allegedly in delinquent reapprty taxes as of September 30, 2007,
based on a third assessment made by the Provilsssassor covering a period of 13 years
from 1994 to 2007. The third assessment citedRheent Company’s non-declaration or
under-declaration of machineries and equipmenténRefinery for real property tax purposes
and its failure to pay the corresponding taxegtersaid period.

The Parent Company timely contested the assessimgffitsng appeals with the LBAA, and
posted the necessary surety bonds to stop coltecfithe assessed amount.

However, with regard to the third assessment, ribstanding the appeal to the LBAA and

the posting of the surety bond, the Provincial $uear, acting on the basis of the Final Notice
of Delinquent Real Property Tax relating to therdhassessment, proceeded with the
publication of the public auction of the assetstled Parent Company, which was set for
October 17, 2007. Due to the Provincial Treasaregfusal to cancel the auction sale, the
Parent Company filed a complaint for injunction ©@atober 8, 2007 before the RTC to stop
the auction sale. A writ of injunction stoppingethublic auction until the final resolution of

the case was issued by the RTC on November 5, 2007.

The RTC issued a Decision dated June 25, 2010 diplgoPetron’s position and declared null
and void the demand on Petron for the paymentaifyréaxes in the amount of P1,731 made
by the Provincial Assessor of Bataan and the lelvyhe properties of Petron. The Court
issued a Writ of Prohibition permanently prohibitinpreventing and restraining the
Provincial Treasurer of Bataan from conducting bligtauction of the properties of Petron or
selling the same by auction, negotiated sale, graah of disposition pending the finality of
the disposition by the LBAA or CBAA, as the caseylm® on the pending appeal made by
Petron from the revised assessment of the ProViAsgessor of Bataan.

On April 15, 2011, Petron and Bataan agreed onmapoomise settlement to terminate all
their pending disputes with respect to all outstagdeal property taxes assessed against
Petron up to the end of the year 2011 and to penarto any and all prior, existing and future
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claims by, or litigation between, them arising fréime facts and circumstances relating to the
properties covered by said tax declarations.

Petron and Bataan filed with the CBAA last April, 2911, a Joint Motion for the approval of
the Compromise Agreemer®n May 23, 2011, CBAA issued a Joint Decision apjmg the
Compromise Agreement and dismissing all of Petrdialsility with respect to real property
taxes due on properties until calendar year 201 &ffect, all CBAA cases are now dismissed.

Guimaras Case

Complaints for Homicide, Less Serious Physical rieg and Violation of the Philippine
Clean Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275) were filed agaitie Parent Company represented by
Messrs. Nicasio I. Alcantara and Khalid D. Al-Fagdaits former Chairman and President,
respectively, and the Captain and owner of M/T Sblan June 17, 2009, as a result of the oil
slick from the said vessel.

The Respondents denied the allegations imputechstgiem, as the same accusation was
resolved and dismissed by the Provincial Prosesutffice of Guimaras in its resolution
dated March 2, 2007.

On July 14, 2011, the Provincial Prosecutor’'s @ffaf Guimaras issued a Joint Resolution
finding probable cause to indict the owner and @aptain of M/T Solar 1 and Messrs.
Alcantara and Mr. Faddagh for Violation of Sectk8) Paragraph 5 in relation to Section 4 of
the Clean Water Act of 2004.

Messrs. Alcantara and Faddagh filed their Motion Reconsideration with the Provincial
Prosecutor’s Office of Guimaras on August 1, 20hltlee ground that under Republic Act
No. 9483, otherwise known as “The Oil Pollution Gmnsation Act of 2007”, it is the owner
of the vessel, not the charterer, that is liabledoy oil spill or pollution damage that may
result from the operation of the said vessel.
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Petron Corporation and Subdiaries

Receivables
June 30, 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Pes)

Breakdown:
Accounts Receivable - Trade
Accounts Receivable - Non-Trade

Total Accounts Receivable

AGING OF TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
Receivables 1-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days
Total
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts Receivable - Trade
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8,154

P 23,029

P 13,305

1,971

399

251

15,926

1,051
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Interim Financial Report as of June 30, 2011
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdition and Performance

Financial Performance

YTD June 2011 vs. YTD June 2010

Petron Corporation posteales revenuesf R 134.90 billionin the first half of the year compared to
P115.35 billion of the same period last year. Th&olgtowth in revenues can be largely attributed to
higher oil price and increased export sales. Dulvhich is the reference crude price in the Asia
Pacific region, averaged US$105.80/barrel versu$7®0 in first half 2010 while export sales
jumped by 54% hitting 3.14 million barrels. Margitikewise, improved with sales of high-margin
petrochemical products of up to 1.7 million baridlsing the period.

Variance- Fav

YTD June (Unfav)

(In Million Pesos) 2011 2010 | Amt | g
Sales 134,897 115,354| 19,543 17
Cost of Goods Sold 121,03 105,867 (15,170) (14)
Gross Margin 13,860 9,487 4,373 46
Selling and Administrative

Expenses 3,072 2,839 (233) (8)
Non-operating Charges 2,731 2,791 54 2
Net Income | 6,045 2,960 3,085 104
EBITDA 11,552 7,038 4,514 64
Sales Volume (MB) 23,216 23,979 (763) (3)
Earnings per Share (In Peso) 0.59 0.29 0.30 103
Return on Sales (%) 4.5 2.6 1.9 73

Net incomereached? 6.05 billion or more than double last year’s profitzo2P6 billion.

With the improved bottom line, earnings before liest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) of B 11.55 billionalso surpassed the B 7liilion level a year earlier.

Earnings per shareof B 0.59was twice as much the B 0.2&t year whilereturn on salesgrew
from 2.6% to4.5%.

Major contributory factors are the following:

Gross margin (GM) rose by 46% fronR 9.49 billion in June 2010 tB 13.86 billionthis year. The
following accounted for the variance in gross margi

¢ Sales volume for the first half of 201lwent down to23.2 million barrels from previous
year’'s 24.0 million barrels. Domestic sales droppgd..9 million barrels as reduced motorist
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activity due to high fuel prices and bad weathanpened local demand. Exports, however,
grew by 54% or 1.1 million barrels.

¢ Salesrose by 17% td® 134.90 billionfrom B 115.35 billion the year before essentidilg to
the escalation in average selling price per litemptedby the 38% spike in regional MOPS
prices.

¢ Cost of Goods Soldwent up toB 121.04 billion from last year’s B 105.87 billion as the
average cost per liter increased by 17%. Theinseost was principally due to the 25%
escalation in landed cost of crude that formed gpftte total cost of goods sold.

¢+ Refinery Operating Expensesincreasedo B 2.66 billion from B 2.47 billion during same
period last year. Higher expenses was due to thdiceed effect of the following: 1) increased
power consumption due to incremental crude run laigter cost of electricity; 2) rent of
equipment for Refinery Master Plan-2 project; 3yha@r real property tax and 4) higher
employee costs due to additional manpower complenidre increases were offset by the
drop in depreciation expense.

é Selling and Administrative Expenses (OPEXjamounted taR 3.07 billion, 8% more than the
B 2.84 billion expenditures incurred last yeanaw/ly-built service stations resulted in increased
rent and depreciation. Higher acquisition of LPGinders andmore aggressive promotional
activities also contributed to the increase in OPBEXith the rise in OPEX, despite the drop in
volume,OPEX per liter of volume sold went up t8 0.83this year from B 0.74 last year.

é Net Financing Costs and Other Chargeslid toR 2.74 billion from the B 2.79 billion level as of
June 2010. This year’s translation gain from U8adalenominated transactions was a reversal
from last year’s loss. Higher interest expense tduthe increase in average borrowing level and
rate was tempered by interest income on advanakmaney placements.

YTD June 2010 vs YTD June 2009

Petron posted a consolidatedt incomeof B 2.96 billionfor thefirst half of the year, 64% higher
than the year-ago profit of B 1.8 billion. Thgrsficant improvement in the Company’s bottom line
was fueled by higher domestic sales and better imafgpm petrochemical feedstocks. Comparative
summary follows:

Variance- Fav
(Unfav)

YTD June

(In Million Pesos)

2010

2009

Amt

%

Sales 115,354 76,679 38,675 50
Cost of Goods Sold 105,86/ 69,406 (36,461) (53)
Gross Margin 9,487 7,273 2,214 30
Selling and Administrative

Expenses 2,839 2,766 (73) (3)
Non-operating Charges 2,791 1,966 (825) (42)
Net Income 2,960 1,808 1,152 64
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YTD June

2010

2009

Amt

Variance-Fav(Unfav)

%

(In Million Pesos)

EBITDA 7,038 6,399 639 10
Sales Volume (MB) 23,979 21,414 2,565 12
Earnings per Share (In Peso) 0.29 0.19 0.10 53
Return on Sales (%) 2.6 2.4 0.2 8

During the second quarter, Petron registered raiiregs of B 1.03 billion, up by 10% from B 934
million profit for the same period last year. Staltude oil and finished products prices resulted i
better margins this year compared last year as ofdsie products sold came from expensive crude
in 2008 after the total plant shutdown (TPS) infiret quarter.

Consequentlyearnings before interest, taxes, depreciation andnaortization (EBITDA) reached
B 7.04 billion, 10% more than the year ago total of B 6.40dwilli

Earnings per shareescalated t® 0.29from B 0.19 a year earlier whileturn on sales almost
matched last year's 2.4%.

Major contributory factors are the following:

Gross margin (GM), in terms of amount, rose by 30%R®.49 billion from previous year’s B 7.27
billion owing largely to increased sales volume &etter returns on exports of petrochemicals. With
the full commercial operations of the BTX unit, esalof propylene more than tripled 466MMB
from 146MMB while benzene and toluene contributedtal turnover 0691MMB versus NIL last
year. However, GM rate dropped8&&o from 9% in the first half 2009 on account mainfynegative
margins on fuel (Naphtha) exports.

The following accounted for the variance in grossgn:

¢ Sales volumewent up by 12% t®24.0MMB from prior year's 21.4MMB primarily from
higher diesel and petrochemical sales. Demandiésetigrew due to increased operations of
independent power producers during the electiomogecombined with the effect of new
service station builds. Last year, the refinery wasTPS in the first quarter while the BTX
unit started commercial operations only in Aprilmiiing production and sales of
petrochemicals as well as of fuel products in tret §emester.

¢+ Net salestotaledP 115.35 billion almost twice the 2009 level of B 76.68 billicadeable
mainly to higher average selling price per lited1@: B 29.61 vs. 2009:B 21.97) complemented
by the 2.6MMB incremental sales volume. Year-onryezgional MOPS prices escalated to an
average US$81.55/bbl this year from US$55.75/bffiksn half of 2009.
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¢ Cost of Goods Sold (CGS}urged td® 105.87 billionfrom B 69.41 billion in the same period
the previous year brought about by more expensiveecpurchases that went into CGS (2010:
US$77.88 vs. 2009: US$53.31). Since the refinery aaTPS for the first few months of 2009,
only 58% of CGS was sourced from crude compare848h this year. As against last year,
average importation costs per liter were cheapsfawis in 2010 (2010: B 19.70 vs. 2009:
R 16.50).

+ Refinery Operating Expenseswhich formed part of CGS, declined by 6%2&@&.47 billionas
maintenance and repairs (M&R) were trimmed downhbif. The bulk of last year's M&R
were related to the restoration of the electriaailities damaged by the 2008 fire incident plus
turnaround activities of some units.

é Selling & Administrative Expenses of B 2.84 billion for the year matched 2009 level as
increased expenses related to service station rietespansion projects were offset by lower
advertising expenses. However, opeso per liter basis actual OPEX was lower & 0.72versus
B 0.81 a year ago as volume sold grew from 21.4M¥B4.0MMB

é Net Financing Costs & Other Chargesof B 2.79 billionmoved up by 42% from last year’s total.
Interest expense was lower this year by B 710anilvhich can be attributed to the decline in
short-term borrowing level (2010 average: B 35/8B2009 average: B 42.9B) and rates (2010:
4.3% vs. 2009: 6.7%). This was slightly temperedH®y rise in long-term interest payments (by
B 357 million) mostly related to the B 10 bildid~XCN loan availed in June 2009. However,
lower interest expense was fully offset by higherek and commodity hedging losses recorded
this year.

Financial Position

June 2011 vs. December 2010

Petron ended the first half of 2011 wiittal resourcesof B 161.39 billionor slightly lower than
end- 2010 level oR 161.82 billion

Cash and cash equivalentdropped by 49% t& 22.55 billionmainly due to the settlement of loans,
investment in capital projects and purchase ofntwaes.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iesswent down by 14% from B 0.23 billion ®
0.19 billion brought about by the decline in market value @Estments in marketable securities and
club membership shares.

Trade and Other Receivables-nebf B 23.03 billion,improved by 5% or B 1.24 billion from the B
24.27 billion level as at end of 2010 owing to lewgevernment receivables.

Inventories grewsignificantly from B 28.15 billion t@ 41.71 billionprincipally due to higher crude
volume and price.
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Other current assetsof R 6.70 billion went beyondthe B 4.29 billion level in December 2010
essentially on account of higher Input VAT due ighler purchase price of crude and finished
products.

With the sale of 3¥ floor and 14 parking slots of Petron Mega Plagaets-held-for-sal@windled
by 6% from B 0.82 billion t& 0.78 billion.

Property, plant and equipment-net increased by 14% from B 34.96 billion B39.68 billion
attributed largely to capital expenditures in thefiRery specifically the Refinery Solid Fuel-Fired
Power Plant and Refinery Master Plan 2, and aduitiservice stations.

Investment in associatesvent up from B 0.80 billion t& 1.39 billion brought about mainly by the
purchase of 35% interest in Manila North HarbortPloc.

Deferred tax assetsnet moved up ta® 129 million from B 28 million in 2010 due to the effect of
unrealized profit from subsidiaries.

Short-term loans and liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importations decreased by
6% toP41.09 billiondue to settlements made partly tempered by higlugleamportations.

Derivative Liabilities fell to B 6 million from end-December 2010’s B 30 million level dadesser
notional amounts of derivative instruments.

Income tax payableballooned from B 14 million t® 586 million due to higher taxable income
during the first half of the year. The December@€dxable income considered the net operating loss
carry-over (NOLCO) of prior years and the utilizatiof past years’ MCIT.

Long-term debt, inclusive of current portion, ended lower by 5% from B 54.40 billion Bo51.61
billion with the payment of loan amortization.

Deferred tax liabilities-net amounted ta® 1.64 billion, down by 16% compared with the B 1.96
billion balance as at December 31, 2010 due tontipact of temporary differences in the income tax
computation.

Asset retirement obligation escalated by 6% from B 815 millida B 861 million on account of
higher accretion rate.

Other non-current liabilities perked up 10% or B 59 million ® 668 million from B 609 million as
of end-December 2010 prompted by the increaseglimder deposits and cash bonds.

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent companyrose by 9% td® 57.69 billion.

The P1.62 billion improvement in equity was principalliyie to the B 6.03 billion earnings realized
during the first six months partly offset by castidends paid to preferred and common shareholders
amounting td?1.41 billion.
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June 2010 vs December 2009

At the close of the first half of the year, Petstotal resourcesstood a@ 139.0 billion up 23% or
B 25.8 billion from end-December 2009 level dEB3.19 billion.

Loan availments to finance capital expendituresnargedcash and cash equivalentby 118% or
R 15.34 billion td® 28.32 billion

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Issclimbed by 15% or B 26.0 million from B 169
million to B 195 million brought about by higher market values of investsémimarketable equity
securities and proprietary memberships.

Inventories-net rose toP 37.66 billion from B 28.17 billion as of December 31, 2009.sTvas
attributed to higher volume of crude and finisheddoicts equivalent to B 12.76 billion partly offse
by the drop in prices (2010 per liter: B 24.332@09: B 26.97) from year-end level valued at4&2 3
billion. There were minimal purchases in Decemlreramticipation of the impact of the ASEAN
Trade in Goods Agreement (ATIGA).

Other current assets dropped by 40% or B 1.8 billion from B 4.47 ibill to B 2.67 billion
essentially on account of filing input VAT claims aero-rated sales.

Deferred tax assetgleclined this period tB 6.0 million from end-December 2009’s B 7 million due
mainly to the effect of translation adjustmentttoe foreign insurance subsidiary.

Other non-current assetswere higher aR 3.25 billion this year from B 1.33 billion in year-end
2009 primarily traced to advances to the retirenfigmd.

Short-term loans andliabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importations slipped by 6%
(B 3.09 billion) from B 50.27 billion t& 47.18 billion due essentially to settlements made partly
tempered by higher crude/finished products impimnast.

Trade and other payablesdeclinedto B 4.28 billionfrom last year’'s B 4.92 billion traced largely to
the reclassification from trade accounts receivgisepayments received from government accounts
for future product purchases.

Long-term debt inclusive of current portion escalated by 81% or B 15.39 billion from B 18.89
billion to P34.28 billion traceable to the newly-availed foreign loan amantio US$355 million
partly reduced by amortizations on outstanding$oan

Income tax payableincreased td&® 14 million from B 10 million as at December 31, 2009 owing t
higher tax liabilities reported by the subsidiaries

Deferred income tax liabilities-netat P 1.41 billion grew almost three-fold from B 514 million

traceable to the impact of NOLCO as well as tempouifferences reflected under parent and
subsidiaries’ accounts.
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Other non-current liabilities moved up by 6% or B 64 million ® 1.12 billion this period from B
1.05 billion as of December 2009 mainly becausthefincrements in provision for Asset Retirement
Obligation and cylinder/cash bond deposits.

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent closed a 50.46 billionat the end of the
first semester showing a 35% or B 13.17 growthr dlie end-December 2009 level attributable
mainly to the following:
é P 9.86 billionadditional paid-in capital from the issuance offened shares;
é P 3.54 billion first half net income partly reduced by tRe238.2 million dividend on
preferred shares.

Cash Flow

Internally cash generated funds were more thareblfg the substantial increase in inventories,,thus
resulted in net operating cash outflows201.59 billion.

Cash outflows from investing activities was prinhatised in various capital projects at the Refinery
such as the Refinery Solid Fuel-Fired Power Plard Refinery Master Plan-2; additional new
service station outlets and investment in ManilathNélarbor Port, Inc.

Available cash was also used partly to pay-off skemm loans and maturing long-term obligations.

In Million Pesos June 30, 2011 | June 30, 2010 | Change

Operating outflows/inflows (B 1591) R 4,450 e6,041)
Investing outflows (7,375) (2,573) (4,802)
Financing outflows/inflows (12,443) 13,309 (25,752)

Discussion of the company’s key performance indicats:

Ratio June 30, 2011 Dec 31, 2010

Current Ratio 1.6 1.6
Debt to Equity Ratio 1.8 2.0
Return on Equity (%) 21.7 17.4
Debt Service Coverage 2.9 4.2
Tangible Net worth 58.0 billion 53.3 billion

Current Ratio Total current assets divided by total curreabilities. This ratio is a rough indication
of a company's ability to service its current oatigns. Generally, the higher the current ratie, t
greater the "cushion" between current obligatiard @ company's ability to pay them.
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Debt to Equity Ratio Total liabilities divided by tangible net worthThis ratio expresses the
relationship between capital contributed by creditnd that contributed by owners. It expresses th
degree of protection provided by the owners for drexlitors. The higher the ratio, the greater the
risk being assumed by creditors. A lower ratiogratly indicates greater long-term financial safety

Return on Equity Net income divided by average total stockholdegsiity. This ratio reveals how
much profit a company earned in comparison to ¢f@ emount of shareholder equity found on the
statements of financial position. A business ties a high return on equity is more likely to be on
that is capable of generating cash internally. ther most part, the higher a company’s return on
equity compared to its industry, the better.

Debt Service Coveragd-ree cash flows add available closing cash loalaivided by projected debt
service. This ratio shows the cash flow availdblpay for debt to the total amount of debt paymment
to be made. It also measures the company’s abdligettle dividends, interests and other financing
charges.

Tangible Net Worth Net worth minus intangible assets. This figgrees a more immediately
realizable value of the company.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Revised Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant PETRON CORPORATION

Signature and Title Q/'

JOEL ARGELO C. CRUZ
Corporate Secretary

Date: August 15, 2011

Principal Financial/Accounting Officer/Controller

Signature and Title 1”"

,,EK EFREN ABRILLO

Assistant Vice President - Controllers

Date: August 15,2011
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